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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related business. In line with a recovering
global economy amid uncertainties and fluctuations in 2021, levels of
industrial production and commodity trading were gradually restored.
However, due to the combination of factors such as the weakened
stimulus effect resulted from imposition of policy, the imbalanced internal
driving force, and the ongoing mutation of the coronavirus, the global
economy continued to witness a tendency towards decline after a peak
in the recovery in the second quarter in 2021. Despite the challenges
brought about by changes in international relations and the pandemic of
the century, China continued to implement stringent pandemic prevention
and control measures, and managed to maintain its global leading
position in economic development and pandemic prevention and control.
Nonetheless, China’s GDP grew steadily with a rising proportion in the
global economy.

Affected by the continuing pandemic in 2021, the domestic tourism
and accommodation industry witnessed a favorable start but a decline
towards the end of the year. In particular, the pandemic continued to
spread in various cities in the second half of the Year, which increased
the uncertainties to the recovery of the accommodation service industry.
To achieve growth in our performance against the dual pressures from
business survival and development, the Group persisted in the strategy of
strengthening its major business line while enhancing its core competitive
strengths, and capitalising on the macroeconomic environment and
market development trend so as to make timely adjustments to its
operating strategies. First, we sped up store opening and expanded the
operation scale so as to form a well-structured accommodation brand
matrix with distinctive features and clear priorities. Second, we seized
opportunities arising from the increasing strong consumer sentiment
driven by the recovering tourism industry during the first half of the
Year, by offering innovative product and service models, transforming
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

businesses to meet local market demands, and optimizing membership
rights and interests to improve customer experiences. Furthermore, we
upgraded our marketing approaches and strengthened our models of
competition so as to improve business operations. Third, we expanded
our service scope by focusing on accommodation consulting and
management services, including diversified and high-quality products
and services in a targeted manner such as hostels, elderly apartments
and elderly resorts, so as to increase our market share. On this basis, the
Group also strives to achieve timely warning and dynamic prevention and
control of major risks in operations, make active responses to pandemic
impacts on our operations, and promote our sustainable and high-
quality development. Benefiting from the full opening of the Chengdu
Branch and Wuhan Branch at the beginning of the Year, the Group
has expanded its overall business scale and its revenue for the Year
increased by approximately 39.2% as compared with the corresponding
period of the previous year. However, higher operating costs and finance
costs associated with the opening of new branches have also resulted in
the increase in loss for the Year for the Group.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2022, the global economic growth is expected to decelerate
amid the lingering pandemic, while the supply chain bottleneck may
exacerbate the inflationary pressure. China’s economic development
is facing “the pressure from a shrinking demand, supply shocks, and
weakening expectations”. Furthermore, in the context of the evolving
political and economic landscapes in the international market, geopolitical
tensions continue to heat up, rendering the external environment more
complex, severe, and uncertain. In this regard, China has established the
development philosophy of seeking progress while maintaining stability,
by continuing with the supply chain expansion for and improving quality
in public service sectors, such as education, culture, elderly care, and
medical care, as well as accelerating the new development pattern in
which internal circulation plays a leading role with the internal and external
circulations being mutually reinforced. The increasingly strong internal
driving force of economy should continue to bring opportunities for the
industrial development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

In continuing to exercise caution over the development prospect in the
future, the Group will enhance the accuracy of research and judgment on
economic conditions and market development trend against challenges
arising from the normalcy of the COVID-19 pandemic and the far-
reaching changes in the external environment. By understanding the
development direction of strategic diversity and brand market positioning,
the Group will further optimize the organizational structure, upgrade
brand standards, and reengineer business processes and other top-level
designs. To improve the development of brand standards and corporate
culture, the Group will improve the operation level, management
capability and overall business performance of the chain branches. In
terms of market development, brand innovation and resource integration,
the Group will persistently pursue multi-brand operation and multi-
model expansion. In terms of accommodation management consultation
services, the Group will focus on providing personalized, differentiated
and high-quality products and services based on market demands and
customer experiences. As for elderly apartments and elder resorts, by
integrating medical care and healthcare services into the tourist resorts,
the Group will explore the healthcare tourism in the post-pandemic
era, by accelerating the implementation of healthcare tourist resorts
projects. By exercising refined cost control to improve the closed-loop
mechanism of “investment, financing, management, and exit”, the Group
will aim achieve its long-term value, and strive to maximize returns for the
shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I, acting on behalf of the Board, express my utmost appreciation to
our shareholders, customers, and business partners for their long-term
confidence in and support for the Group, as well as my gratitude towards
the management and all of our employees for their commitment and
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Yuan Fuer
Chairman
On Behalf of the Board
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW FOR 2021

For the Year, the Group has 5 leased-and-operated accommodation
projects under operation. Revenue from accommodation operations
during the Year was mainly derived from rental of accommodation
and conference facilities and provision of accommodation facilities
management and accommodation consultations services.

In 2021, China’s GDP grew by 8.1% year on year, ranking top among
all major economies in the world. With its size of economy reaching
RMB114.4 trillion, China has maintained its position as the second
largest economy in the world. Benefiting from the increased vaccination
coverage and the various supportive policies actively implemented by the
government to boost local economy, the Group’s business continued
to grow steadily. However, due to the sporadic outbreak and complex
nature of the pandemic as well as the bumpy recovery in several
mainland cities in the second half of the Year, the accommodation
industry has been somewhat affected. In view of the difficult operating
environment, the Group persisted in the strategy of strengthening its
major business line while enhancing its core competitive strengths,
making adjustments to its operating strategy in accordance with market
demand and the external environment, and seizing every opportunity
during the stable intervals between pandemic waves, so as to minimise
the pandemic impact on the Group’s businesses. In terms of brand
cultivation, we speeded up the pace of shop opening and expanded the
scale of operation. In terms of model innovation, we strengthened online
marketing by offering innovative product and service models to meet the
local market demands, and optimizing membership rights to enhance
customer experience. In terms of service expansion, we provided
diversified and high-quality services in a targeted manner such as hostels,
elderly apartments and timely resorts, so as to increase our market share.
In terms of risk prevention and control, we strengthened timely warning
and dynamic prevention and control of major risks in operations, and
continued to strictly control costs and defer non-emergency expenses
to achieve stable growth in results. The Group recorded revenue of
HK$70,564,000 for the Year, compared with HK$50,678,000 for the
same period of the last financial year, representing an increase of
approximately 39.2%. Nonetheless, the increase in operating and finance
costs also contributed to the increase in the Group’s comprehensive loss
for the Year due to the additional start-up costs incurred for the opening
of the Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

In 2021, the Group pursued the strategic initiative of focusing on our
main business expansion and strengthening our core competence,
while steadily promoting our brand upgrade and new brand incubation
to improve our brand combinations. By diversifying accommodation
brands, we made improvement in service quality and branch features,
which unleashed their unique personalities and cultural connotations. By
providing different products and services to our customers, we increased
our customers’ awareness of each of our brands, which helped improve
our brand value and economic benefits in the midst of achieving market
expansion.

The Group recorded an increase in total comprehensive loss for the Year
as compared to the previous year, the Group continued to dedicate itself
to improving the performance of its existing accommodation projects and
stimulating its accommodation facility management and accommodation
consultations services by implementing effective sales and marketing
plans, including cooperation agreements with new tourism intermediaries
and active liaison with various corporate customers. The Group also
continued to adopt a series of operation improvement schemes during
the Year such as improving accommodation ancillary facilities and
implementing staff performance programs. By seeking customers’
feedback from time to time, reviewing comments available from online
travel agencies and their platforms, as well as actively carrying out
improvement plans to increase service quality, customers’ satisfaction
and employees’ morale, the Group aimed to boost up revenue and
improve performance in all aspects.

In addition to the frontline operation of various accommodation projects
and services, we also took important actions to control back office and
other expenses, including reviewing human resource efficiency and
making corresponding adjustments, maintaining cost saving measures to
lower corporate expenses and reviewing performance from time to time
by comparing to financial budgets, so as to maximize the Group’s profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

The following is an update on the Group’s existing businesses:
Accommodation Projects under Operation
Huizhou Branch

Huizhou Branch is situated at Xunliaowan of Huizhou, which is easily
accessible as Huizhou is located near the Pearl River Delta neighbouring
Shenzhen and Hong Kong with direct flights to other cities in China.
Xunliaowan offers our guests opportunities to enjoy a beach vacation in
the region, become a beach bum, spend their days lazing on the sand
and take in the sun followed by a dip in the clear waters. Also, with both
historic scenic spots and the coast along the Pacific Ocean, Huizhou
attracts domestic and foreign tourists to spend their holiday in the region.

As a result of the scientific coordination of pandemic prevention and
control and the continuous introduction of supportive policies for
the cultural tourism industry in Guangdong Province, the industry is
noticeably on the trajectory of recovery as the popularity of travel among
tourists continues to rise. Despite a significant reduction in available
rooms of Huizhou Branch due to the expired lease of one of the blocks
in 2020, its occupancy rate increased significantly as compared with the
same period of last year due to the improved business prospects for the
accommodation, and the overall room revenue largely remained at the
same level as last year. Given the popularity of Huizhou Branch gained
from prior years and with the commitment to the development of the
Greater Bay Area of the Chinese Government, the Group looks forward
to the increasing number of guests visiting the region which will boost the
performance of Huizhou Branch in the long run.

Nanshan Branch

Nanshan Branch is situated near the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Corridor and the Shekou Port. It has five floors and a total GFA of
approximately 7,000 sg.m, comprising 189 rooms. The project is
located just beside the subway exit of Nanshan Station of Shenzhen
Metro Line No. 11 and it takes approximately 30 minutes to travel from
Nanshan Branch to the airport. Also, Nanshan Branch is in the proximity
of the Coastal City Commercial Area, Shenzhen Book Mall (Nanshan),
Shenzhen Bay Sports Centre Stadium and theme parks such as the
Window of the World, Overseas Chinese Town Harbour and the Sea
World, which provides stable demand for temporary accommodation
from both business and tourism guests.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

Internal renovation work completed in recent years at Nanshan Branch
helped increase the number of rooms, as well as the satisfaction of
accommodation guests. Benefiting from the orderly recovery of the
domestic tourism market and the accelerated recovery of the consumer
sentiment, resumption of cross-province traveling frequency to the pre-
pandemic level, and the increasing demand for business activities such
as exhibitions and training, the operating results of Nanshan Branch
continued to improve, with an increase in revenue over the same period
of the previous year. Given the ever-changing market conditions driven
by government policies implemented to combat the pandemic, the Group
will continue to review its marketing strategies and re-examine the model
of cooperation and sales plans with tourism intermediaries and corporate
customers in order to improve revenue in the long run.

Baoan Branch

Baoan Branch has four floors and a total GFA of approximately
1,700 sg.m, comprising 46 rooms. Surrounded by busy commercial
streets and pedestrian streets, the accommodation project is located
at the central area of administration, culture, sport, commerce and
entertainment in the Baoan District, “a core district of the Bay Area”,
and is within close proximity of Haiya Mega Mall, a famous commercial
center in Shenzhen, and Bao’an Sports Center, the largest gymnasium
in Shenzhen where the 2011 Summer Universiade was held. It is a
20-minute drive from the Baoan International Airport, and takes within
10 minutes walk from the Coach Terminal, the Xixiang Pier, and Lingzhi
Station of Shenzhen Metro Line 5 (near Lingzhi Park). It has convenient
access to efficient road, sea and air transportation.

Benefiting from the overlapping effects of the accommodation hardware
and software improvements brought about by the comprehensive
renovation in recent years and the rebound in the tourism industry, the
occupancy rate of Baoan Branch continued to improve.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

Chengdu Branch

Chengdu Branch is situated near Tianfu Square. It has two floors and
a total GFA of approximately 7,600 sg.m. As located at the heart of
Chengdu, Tianfu Square is a representative landmark, which is not only
the economic, cultural, and commercial center of Chengdu, but also a
strategically important transportation hub. Adjacent to famous tourist
sites, including People’s Park, Wuhou Shrine, Kuanzhai Alley, Chunxi
Road Pedestrian Street, and the millennium ancient temple Daci Temple,
the Chengdu branch gains full access to the golden business district of
Tianfu Square, while overlooking Sichuan Provincial Library, Chengdu
Museum, Tianfu Square, and other new landmarks in the city. Due to
easily accessible transport services, accommodation guests can reach
tourist attractions by express shuttle buses or multiple bus routes nearby
the branch. It takes one minute walk to reach at Metro Lines 1 and 2
(Tianfu Square Station), and approximately five minutes walk to reach the
airport bus stop. In addition, drives from Chengdu Shuangliu International
Airport, Chengdu East Railway Station and Chengdu South Railway
Station take within 30 minutes. Furthermore, the branch is in close
proximity to various gourmet food restaurants.

Upon successful completion of fitting-out works, the Chengdu Branch
officially opened in the first half of 2021, providing a maximum of
approximately 107 accommodation places. In cooperation with the
municipal government’s pandemic prevention measures in response to
recurrent outbreaks in Chengdu, the Chengdu Branch was temporarily
closed for several months during the Year which limited the income
generated from the Chengdu Branch for the Year, which had an impact
on revenue. However, the municipal government immediately introduced
prudent and effective measures to control the pandemic, in an effort
to restore local economic and livelihood activities as soon as possible.
With the increasing momentum of economic recovery in Chengdu and
the steady rebound in tourism consumption confidence, coupled with
the Group’s flexible and rapid approach to adjusting its operational
strategies, the Chengdu Branch is expected to generate sustainable and
stable income for the Group in the coming years.

Wuhan Branch

Located at the intersection of Lingyun Road and Lingkonggang Avenue
in Municipal East-West Lake Lingkonggang Economic Development
Zone, the Wuhan Branch has five floors and a total GFA of approximately
9,000 sg.m. It is adjacent to East-West Lake Five-Ring Sports Center
and the new district government building. It is also close to the East-West
Lake Eco-tourism Zone, Matoutan Cultural Heritage Park, Xiehe East-
West Lake Hospital and Huangshihai Park. It is within 9 minutes drive
to Sandian Metro Station and Matoutan Metro Station. It is 200 meters
away from the bus station of Lingyun Road East, 21 kilometers away
from Wuhan Tianhe Airport and 15 kilometers away from Hankou Railway
Station, which makes it very convenient to travel around.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRREBZERERA A

A

RRESEMII R ITES - HAMERE - AR
EFE#)7,600°F 77K o KT &5 b Ba A #B
DV - R SR T RS - BERAK
WIHRLE  UEMBEH L - XERETH
EXEEAA - KBELBERFESESRH
CMBMARKE - RER - REST - AR
BEEE  THELAMNABIFTEFZLRH &I
BIRMF B ER T AT AR i S — )| 5 B & 4R
RET B - RIFES - 2 EBEN - &
BERREBEXRZHRGERINESRRE
BBt - 2SR (RITEZUE) ZITIERE 1D
i RIS AEREMPITNODE - R
SRS - SECERIEM LSS K307 &
UAREE - DERRSERFEXREE -

REVERMRETRELEZETHK TR -F
“FEFFIARE  RERZN107E
B - ARRERIBERE - BT EAMERFH
PrRiEnE  REBEERFEABREFELERMN
A SAFEBRARIZE  EWMEABLE
WL TRRERNOEEAIEHIRE - EEHE
BEMRAETREDSAEFIMIE - BEERIHLE
ERE AL - REEEEOREE
Nz ARE B AR R PRI 1) J7 3\ 38 B 2 SR
HIE AR R R FRE R A S B KRR TS
FEHIUA ©

EEE

B EAL A T R PR S B R R R ER
MR ERNERER  HAREER @ BR%E
EIFE4I9,000°F /5 K « B 5 EH R AIREE
EROEHNBEBTRE o SIRPERERER
WEEELEBI AR - BARFEHER - =5
EBABESTERR - 9N EBHEIZ NG AL RER
S EM L ISSEE M - BEEERE
NRIZUE2000K ¢ BB EVE R 15 B IR 4921
NE - PEHEONEREROIGAE - B
PP E - BT E o ERIREE -




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

The Wuhan Branch completed its renovation and successfully opened
in the first quarter of 2021, providing up to around 120 accommodation
places. With the further consolidation of the epidemic prevention and
control as well as economic recovery in PRC, coupled with the popularity
of vaccination, the long-suppressed consumer demand in Wuhan was
released and the tourism market stabilized and recovered. The Wuhan
Branch has taken into account the current situation and strengthened
its management and steady operation in terms of operation upgrade,
revenue marketing and cost reduction at the beginning of its operation,
achieving the expected results.

Accommodation Facility Management and Accommodation
Consultations Services

In view of the uncertainty hovering over revenue from the accommodation
operation business due to the pandemic, the Group continued to
explore ways to broaden and stabilise its revenue base and source of
income as well as to improve the performance of the Group such as
the provision of accommodation facility management and consultations
services which are considered to be less impacted by the pandemic.
For facility management services, during the Year, the Group provided
accommodation facility outsourcing management services including
services such as professional cleaning, sterilization, inventory supply
management and quality management to third party customers.

For accommodation consultations services, the Group provides
consultations services for setting up hotels, guesthouses, inns, resorts,
service apartments, elderly apartments, homestays, dormitories, staff
quarters and other accommodation projects, such as performing market
research and investment feasibility analysis, provision of accommodation
construction and design consultations services and accommodation
pre-commencement, opening and construction management
services to customers. During the Year, the Group strengthened its
business operations involving accommodation facility management
and accommodation consultations services, which are expected to
continuously improve the performance of the Group in the foreseeable
future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$70,564,000, compared
with HK$50,678,000 for the last financial year, representing an increase
of approximately 39.2%. The Group recorded a total comprehensive
loss of HK$4,026,000 for the Year compared with HK$1,572,000 for the
last financial year, representing an increase of approximately 156%. The
increase in comprehensive loss was mainly attributable to the gloomy of
accommodation service industries amid the pandemic in the second half
of the Year. Further, the commencement of operation of Chengdu Branch
and Wuhan Branch had also raised the burden for the comprehensive
loss for the Year.

The following table shows the key information of all the Group’s leased-
and-operated accommodation rooms for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 respectively.

g E)

REE - NEBERESUKER70,564,000/8 7T @ 8
A BF B FE 2 50,678,0005% 1 N #939.2% °
REBRAF E 1S 2 HEIB 884,026,000/
TT - B A BERE 21,572,000 JTIE N4
156% ° 2HEGEEINEZHNAFE TEF
FERBETERZEIBEE o b - BEBIE
MREEAREENSRAFELAEEAE
= o

TR AEE2HLHEELLEFTEE DRIR
BE-_ - —Fr-_FT-FTF+_-_A=1+—H
HFEZEFEER -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TE

Total available room nights ] KR E 8 212,359 152,148
Occupancy rate INER 74.03% 71.04%
ARR (RMB)* FHERARET) 282.0 273.3
RevPAR (RMB)* FHEREERA(ARET) 208.7 194.2

ARR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
occupied room nights

# RevPAR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
available room nights

For the Year, total available room nights of the Group increased by
60,211 nights or approximately 39.6% as compared with last financial
year due to commencement of operation of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan
Branch during the Year. The occupancy rate and RevPAR of the Group
increased by 4.2% and increased by RMB14.5 or approximately 7.5%
respectively as compared with last financial year, mainly due to the
average occupancy rate increased due to the “Staycation” promotion
campaign and raising the Group’s accommodation standard by adding
Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch into the Group’s profile. Meanwhile,
the ARR during the Year increased by RMB8.7 on a year-on-year basis as
compared with that of last financial year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs increased by HK$18,532,000, or approximately
38.3%, from HK$48,365,000 for last financial year to HK$66,897,000 for
the Year.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by HK$4,200,000 or
approximately 23.7% due to the newly established Chengdu Branch
and Wuhan Branch. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
increased by HK$5,091,000 or approximately 165.9%, primarily due
to the depreciation of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch after their
commencement of operation during the Year.

Employee benefit expenses increased by HK$6,835,000 or 47.1%
mainly due to the increase in headcounts following the commencement
of Chengdu and Wuhan Branch during the Year. Utilities increased
by HK$1,751,000 or approximately 102.7% mainly attributable to the
increase in average occupancy rate during the Year.

Other operating expenses increased by HK$655,000 or approximately
5.8% mainly due to the impact of the cost saving measures adopted by
the Group during the Year to lower the operating costs.

The following table shows the total operating costs for the financial years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021:

EE A

AFEE RELERAALEAFBREEZ
48,365,000 7 JT 1 Hn 18,532,000 & JT =% %)
38.3%% 66,897,000/ JT ©

5 A & E ¥ & 18 504,200,000 7% JT 3k 49
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2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHTT

Depreciation of right-of-use assets REEENE 21,952 17,7562
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEKEETE 8,160 3,069
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX 21,341 14,506
Utilities NSE i 3,456 1,705
Other operating expenses HAth @R 11,988 11,333
66,897 48,365
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Finance costs

The finance costs increased by HK$2,600,000 to HK$8,105,000 as
compared with last financial year. The increase is mainly represented the
interests accrued from lease liabilities arising from the entering into of
new tenancy agreements of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch during
the second half of 2020.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the Year, the Group mainly financed its operations and expansion
with its own working capital generated internally and borrowings from the
Controlling Shareholder (with principal amount of HK$22,767,000 as at
31 December 2021, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and cash balances of
HK$14,296,000 (31 December 2020: HK$19,969,000). Gearing ratio
is calculated as the amount of interest-bearing borrowings divided by
total equity. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was N/A (31
December 2020: N/A).

The Group was in net current liabilities and net liabilities position of
HK$59,375,000 and HK$1,972,000 as at 31 December 2021. The
Controlling Shareholder has agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Company to enable it to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due and to enable the Company to continue its operations for the
foreseeable future. Consequently, the financial statements are prepared
on a going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no significant investments held, or material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group during
the Year, and the Company does not have any future plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the Year, the Group’s majority of the assets and liabilities, and
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Year, there was no material change to the capital structure of the
Group and information disclosed in the report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The total number of the issued shares of
the Company was 448,363,708 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 448,363,708 shares).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the Year (2020: Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at 7 March 2022,
being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
for the purpose of ascertaining information contained herein (the “Latest
Practicable Date”).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 129 employees (31 December 2020: 124 employees)
as at 31 December 2021. Remuneration is determined with reference
to market terms and performance, qualifications and experience of
each individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual
performance will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for
their contributions. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (31 December 2020: Nil).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments which were not provided for in the Group’s financial
statements, among which HK$12,002,000 commitments were
contracted for. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no outstanding
capital commitments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(81 December 2020: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised
any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the Year.

COMPLIANCE CONFIRMATION

The Board of Directors confirms that throughout the Year, the Group has
conformed in all material respects with all the requirements under relevant
statutes, rules, standards, codes, licences in respect of its operation,
financial reporting, or disclosures in Hong Kong or other applicable
jurisdictions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises and respects: (i) the importance of environmental
protection; (i) the lawful rights of stakeholders, broadly to be categorised
as employees, customers, suppliers, members of communities; and (iii)
corporate social responsibilities of the Group as a member of the society.
A specific report on these issues is covered in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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The following set forth the biographical details of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Chen Wu

Mr. Chen Wu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
20 March 2020. Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor degree in applied
mathematics from Huazhong Polytechnic University (£ F2 T A £2) (formerly
known as Huazhong College of Engineering (% /@ T £ f7)) in 1987 and
graduated from the postgraduate programme in economics management
engineering from Huazhong Polytechnic University (A2 T AZ2) in 1989.
After graduation, Mr. Chen worked for Agricultural Bank of China
from July 1989 to September 2016. He successively held positions
as the Deputy General Manager of International Business Department
and Offshore Business Department in Shenzhen Branch, the General
Manager of Institutional Business Department in Shenzhen Branch and
the President of Branch in Shenzhen Nanshan District of Agricultural
Bank of China. Mr. Chen has been the Vice-president and the General
Manager of Treasury Department of Shenzhen Hazens Real Estate Group
Company Limited from September 2016 to February 2020.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Chung Tin Yan

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Company with
effect from 31 December 2019 and was appointed as the financial
controller and the company secretary of the Company on February 2017.
Mr. Chung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in 2005. He has over 16
years of experience in finance, investment, mergers and acquisitions,
compliance, internal control, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Chung held various senior positions mainly responsible
for business analysis in the management team of the Chief Operating
Officer with Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0215). He has also worked as an audit manager at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Chung also has extensive experience in corporate
finance and fund raising activities in Hong Kong and in the United States.
He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He is also acting
as a subcommittee member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in November 2021.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Yuan Fuer

Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 59, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018
and the Chairman of the Group with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr.
Yuan graduated from Jiangxi Public Medical School in medical studies.
Mr. Yuan, a businessman with over 18 years of experience in property
development and investment business in the PRC, founded Shenzhen
Hazens Real Estate Group Company Limited (“Shenzhen Hazens”) in
1996. Apart from property development and investment in the PRC,
Shenzhen Hazens expanded into other businesses including financial
business, medical business, and hotel and tourism business. Mr. Yuan is
the ultimate beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Mr.
Yuan is also a controlling Shareholder by virtue of being the sole director
and sole shareholder of Hehui International Development Limited, the
Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Yuan is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong,
a non-executive Director of the Company.

Hu Xinglong

Mr. Hu Xinglong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 57, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018. Mr.
Hu holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Hu is a brother-in-law of Mr. Yuan.
Mr. Hu has been the vice president of Shenzhen Hazens since October
2016, and the chairman and the general manager of Shenzhen Hazens
Property Service Company Limited from October 2016 to April 2017.
Furthermore, he had also served as an audit manager, finance manager
and chief accountant of FIYTA Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE Stock Code: 000026) from June 1997
to October 2016. Mr. Hu was certified as Certified Public Accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1993 and Certified
Internal Auditor by the Institute of Internal Auditors in 1999.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wu Jilin

Mr. Wu Jilin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Mr. Wu holds a Master Degree in Accounting from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Wu was an executive partner of Shenzhen
Lianchuang Lixin Certified Public Accountants since January 2005 and
is an adjunct professor of Accounting Faculty and a tutor of part-time
master students at Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics since
November 2015 and September 2016 respectively. He is a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since 2013.

Du Hongwei

Mr. Du Hongwei (“Mr. Du”), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15
August 2018. Mr. Du holds a Master Degree in Economics from Fudan
University. Mr. Du was the vice president, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (Stock Code:
2608) from December 2013 to July 2016, January 2014 to March 2016
and June 2014 to March 2016, respectively. Mr. Du was the general
manager of Tianjin Yufeng Equity Investment Management Company
Limited from September 2009 to May 2012. Mr. Du was a director of
Sichuan Dikang Sci & Tech Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd. (now
known as Sichuan Languang Development Co., Ltd.), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Shanghai Stock Exchange Stock
Code: 600466) from November 2007 to October 2008. Mr. Du was
an independent non-executive director of Enviro Energy International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1102) from June 2019 to October 2019
and has been re-appointed to the same position since June 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERCBRER

Li Zhou

Ms. Li Zhou (“Ms. Li”), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Ms. Li holds a PhD Degree in Applied Economics from Xian Jiaotong
University. Ms. Li was certified as a certified hospitality educator from
America Hotel & Lodging Educational Institute in 2008 and a consultant
psychologist (Grade 2) by Occupational Skill Testing Authority of the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security in 2011. She was
an international visiting scholar of School of Business, the George
Washington University from 2009 to 2010 and a visiting scholar of the
University of Hawaii from 2016 to 2017. Ms. Li was qualified as a teacher
for higher education to teach management course by the Department
of Education of Guangdong province in 2003. Ms. Li was appointed as
Professor by Jinan University with effect from 1 October 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct
responsibility of the Executive Directors, as hamed above.

Only the Executive Directors are regarded as members of the Group’s
senior management.
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The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the then applicable Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the Year, except for certain deviations
as specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained
below. The Board will keep reviewing and updating such practices from
time to time to ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
by the Directors and relevant employees who, because of their office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company’s securities. The Company had
made specific enquiry to all the Directors and such relevant employees
and they had confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the
Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprises seven Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wu (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chung Tin Yan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Ms. Li Zhou

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the
websites of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out in the section of “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 22. Mr. Yuan Fuer, a
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Company, is a brother-
in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong, a non-executive Director of the Company.
Save for the aforementioned relationship, there are no family or other
material relationships among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the Year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
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Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management under the leadership of the chief executive
officer. Major matters include implementation of the strategies and
decisions approved by the Board and the management assumes full
responsibility to the Board for operations of the Group.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues and with
no objections from any Director, a shorter reasonable notice was given to
the Directors for a number of regular meetings held in 2021.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held
on 28 May 2021, all the then independent non-executive Directors and
the then non-executive Directors were present to enable the Board to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply
with the CG Code.
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EEBHEELLH  BRELELLR  FMWE
EOeE  REZECLEARERSZHE

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination
committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended 31

B 2

December 2021 is set out in the following table: AEEEHN T -
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
2 EZ283 INZEgeE FMZEe8E REZE8EE € V-1
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
meetings held) ~ meetings held) ~ meetings held) ~ meetings held) ~ mestings held)
(EExg/ (LERE/  (BEXE/ (LRRE/  (BEX8/
B[UERANY) BOLRERY) BIeZERY) BOSRENY) BTe38K%)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Wu BRE & 4/4 N/A TER N/ANiEA N/A TNER 11
Mr. Chung Tin Yan BARE 4/4 N/A RN N/A R N/A R 11
Non-executive Directors FEHTEE
Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman) RERAE(ER) 4/4 N/A 7R N/A i N/A i 1/
Mr. Hu Xinglong et e 4/4 N/A T ER N/A T EF N/A @R 11
Independent Non-executive BUHFHTEE
Directors
Mr. W Jiin REMTE 4/4 2/2 11 11 17
Mr. Du Hongwei REBRE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
Ms. Li Zhou ARt 4/4 2/2 11 11 1/1
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and invited to raise any matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are opened for
inspection as requested by the Directors. During the Year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors were also provided
with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors of the Company, at the
expense of the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial
position of the Group through, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so
that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Chen Wu was the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group and Mr. Yuan Fuer was the Chairman of
the Group. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are segregated. The Chairman’s main role is to lead the Board in
discharging its powers and duties, while the Chief Executive Officer’s
main role is to lead the management of the Company for undertaking
all the responsibilities delegated by the Board and managing the overall
operation of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a specific term of three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every one year or three years. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing
board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives was summarized as follows:

Board diversity
EzgfEaznt

NED

Designation*

v

Gender

MR

Age group

FEMER

Length of service (year)

PRI EE ()

Professional industry
HETHE

Male 5%

Property /5 7= [l By

Financial 8175

i ARRTESEEMNA
Ko UBFEREFTEREZTIEBRAH

RAFREBEH  EEgEZE2ZnLERMNAE
Aotatian T

INED
Female %1%

30 -39

Education %5

0 1 2 3

4 5 6 7

Number of directors

EEAY

* ED: Executive Director
HITES

NED: Non-executive Director

JEMITESR

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
objectives of Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The remuneration packages of Directors are determined
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
Members are provided with sufficient resources, including but not limited
to, the access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations, at the expense of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2021 for reviewing the remuneration package of the
Directors and the senior management, assessing performance of
Directors, approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts and making
recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Du Hongwei (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Jilin

Ms. Li Zhou

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, an
analysis of annual remuneration payable to the members of the senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
below:

FHEEeRBE—_TE-_—F+_-_A=+—H
HFERT—REHEURTSEZT NG RERE
BrzHMAR  FHEESZ2RE - #HEEER
BAHZEREENEE SR EEE 5
MrRmEESHELHBER -

RARERS  FTHNEESHUT=ZEKEAR
AR

HRERE(ERE)

REMEE

TRt
REIBIK B ABIIENITES -

BEAN - ARIEEE AT AISFRNMESEB.A 50K
ENEREEEXNEREZE T -_—F+=7

=t HULEFEZFEFMREME RSN
FIIEAT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF

Number of Number of

persons persons

A AH

Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T LA _E 2 1
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z#70.21,000,00078 7T 5 6

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and
succession planning of the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.
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For the policy of nomination of directors of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”), the Nomination Committee of the Company shall first discuss
the nomination of candidates for new Directors, examine the qualification
of these candidates, and then recommend such candidates to the
Board. The Board shall determine whether the appointment of such
candidates should be proposed for election at the general meetings.
The major criteria considered by the Nomination Committee and the
Board are the candidates’ educational backgrounds, experience in the
industry, their proposed commitment to the Company and achieving the
goal of diversity of the Board. Regarding the nomination of independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee will also particularly
consider the independence of such candidates taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board structure to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company pursuant to its
terms of reference (available on the websites of the Company the Stock
Exchange), the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered current Board composition has
achieved the objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chung Tin
Yan, Mr. Du Hongwei and Mr. Wu Jilin shall retire and are eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Ms. Li Zhou (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

° reviewing the financial information of the Group;

° reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

o overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2020, and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021, the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, the effectiveness of Company’s
internal audit function and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wu Jilin (Chairman)

Mr. Du Hongwei

Ms. Li Zhou

All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the

members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process
includes enhancing the systems of risk management and internal
control in view of the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications
and experience, their training programs, and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The Board
has conducted and completed such review in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 and considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way
SO as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,140,000 to the external auditor and
its affiliate. Among such fee, the amount of approximately HK$900,000
was paid for the final audit purposes including interim review and other
review engagements and approximately HK$240,000 was paid to its
affiliate for non-audit purposes. The non-audit services mainly consist
of consulting services in relation to the environmental, social and
governance reporting, risk assessment and review on financing reporting
procedures and internal control system, as well as due diligence work
over new projects.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

During 2021, Mr. Chung Tin Yan has attended relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge. He met the training
requirements as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2021. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training confirmations for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there
is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group did not declare nor pay any dividends to shareholders of the
Group during the Year.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on
the results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group, future
prospects and other factors that the Directors may consider relevant.
Holders of the shares will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
The declaration of payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Directors’ discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed
as dividends, such portion of profits will not be able to be reinvested in
the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that the Directors
will be able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out
in any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in the
past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Group in the future.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with
objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, including
annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have been included in
circulars accompanying notice convening a general meeting and such
procedures have been read out by the chairman of the general meeting.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders. The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). At the annual general
meeting held on 28 May 2021 (the “2021 AGM”), a separate resolution
was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.
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At the 2021 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from
the auditor of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, were
present for questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (2021
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary to the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed
for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting. Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSAL

If a shareholder wishes to make any proposal at any general meeting
of the Company, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of
the proposal to the company secretary of the Company within 7 days
commencing from the date of the notice of the general meeting of the
Company (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Director from time to time).

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@Isih.com.hk, or mail
to Suite 1702, 17/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HEREBRSE

PRINCIPLES

The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2021, in order
to comply with the requirements set forth in Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules. This
covers the environmental and social performance of the core business
of the Group in the PRC during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its business,
as well as providing support to environmental protection and the
communities in which it operates. Quality accommodation services
are delivered to customers by the Group, and its business is managed
prudently under sound decision-making processes. The Group seeks to
balance the views and interests of the stakeholders through constructive
conversation with a purpose to set the course for long-term prosperity.
The board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for evaluating and
determining the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk
management and internal control systems are in place and operate
effectively. The Group has set up a working team (the “ESG Working
Team”) of which the team members meet regularly to review and evaluate
the corporate performance on the relevant ESG issues.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG issues.
During the Year, the Board, the management and the ESG Working
Team evaluated the impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation
and formulated ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The
oversight of the Board ensures that the management and the ESG
Working Team can have all the right tools and resources to oversee the
ESG issues.
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To demonstrate the Group’s commitment on transparency and
accountability, the Group has established an ESG Working Team which
has clear terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. The Group highly values the opinions of each stakeholder which
are regarded as the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Team is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process and risk management of the Group. ESG
governance matters and ESG-related issues are reviewed at the regular
meeting during the Year.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms, and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through general communication with the stakeholders,
the Group is able to understand the expectations and concerns from its
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impacts of the business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality in ESG aspects through the
following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group; (i) key ESG
areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii) validation and
determining material ESG issues based on the results of communication
with the stakeholders.

Engaging these steps can enhance the understanding of the degree of
importance of the Group’s stakeholders to each material ESG issue,
and can enable the Group to plan the sustainable development direction
more comprehensively in the future.
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Board review progress against ESG-related goals and
targets

The progress of implementation and the performance of the goals and
targets should be closely reviewed from time to time. Modification may
be needed if the progress falls short of expectation or change of business
operations. Effective communication about the goals and targets with key
stakeholders such as employees, customers and suppliers are essential.

Setting strategic goals enables the Group to develop a realistic roadmap
and focus on results of achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires is the ESG Working Team to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
Group’s ambitions and goals.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report is centred on four principles:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were
conducted regularly to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected prudently.
Please refer to the environmental and social performance data for
standards and methodologies used for calculation of key performance
indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have been
presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection
and calculation methods have remained consistent throughout the years
to facilitate comparability over time.
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations and
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses. During the Year,
the Group operates five leased accommodation branches. The five
branches are located at Nanshan District (the “Nanshan Branch”) and
Baoan District (the “Baocan Branch”) in Shenzhen, in Huizhou city (the
“Huizhou Branch”), Chengdu city (the “Chengdu Branch”) and Wuhan
city (the “Wuhan Branch”) of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
respectively (collectively, the “Five Branches”). The Five Branches have
648 rooms in total. In addition, certain green renovations of the Five
Branches have been completed in the Year in order to attract more
guests and boost the revenue of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online
and offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with the
stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders on their
recommendations and propositions to ensure its business practices can
meet the expectations of the stakeholders. Through regular engagement
with key stakeholders, the Group is able to identify major concerns and
proceed to formulating a response.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, governments and regulatory
bodies, employees, customers, suppliers and society and the public. The
Group discusses with the stakeholders through various channels for their
expectations and relevant feedback of the Group as below:
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Stakeholders Expectations Communication and feedback
BF0E L BERKRE

Shareholders o Financial results ° Improving profitability

IR B4R REEaMEN

° ESG performance
B HgRERRE
° Corporate transparency
EEHE
o Sound risk control

& MR BRIE

° Monitoring use of resources
EREIRE A

° Regular information disclosures
EHE S

° Optimising risk management and internal
control

BIoRERE R M AR E S
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Stakeholders
B0E

Expectations

HE

Communication and feedback

BERKER

Governments and
regulatory bodies

Bk EE#E

Employees

B8

Customers

P

Suppliers
e

° Compliance with laws and regulations
BEFED KR IR

° Tax payment in accordance with laws
HOEMNTR

° Compliance with environmental
regulations
BTRERD

o Career development platform
BEZERYA

° Salary and benefits
e kEF

° Occupational health and safety
BERELRLZD

° Service quality
Rk %

° Customer information security
BERERLZE

o Customer rights and interests
protection
B EmiRE

o Business ethics and credibility
BRBENER
° Integrity cooperation

HIEETE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

MWAEBEREEZERER A

o Compliance operation
BRLE

° Tax payment in full and on time
L B RRATE

o Compliance of environmental policies
MR R

° Transparent promotion mechanism
BT

o Competitive salary and employee benefits
BB heEe LESRA

° Providing trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
RH{ESEIIRINGAR 2 E S

° Monitoring the customers’ satisfaction
level through enquiry and questionnaire
NEARBSEAENEPREE

° Customer privacy protection
B PLRERE

° Complaint handling mechanism

FRIR R

o Performing the contracts according to law
HOERBL
o Building a responsible supply chain

B B B
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Stakeholders Expectations Communication and feedback
BHE HE BERRE
Society and the public o Environmental protection Putting into use environmental protections
HERAR IRIBIRE and energy saving equipments
e Employment opportunities HEIRIR BN BE AR A1 A
MERE Providing equal opportunities for all

o Caring company and social
responsibility
BEARMTEEE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Year, the Group conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment, which involved group discussions, interviews and a survey
with internal and external stakeholders to identify “material issues” and
reflect the environmental, social and operational issues which have the
most significant impacts on the Company’s business and the relevant
issues which are of concern to the stakeholders.

With reference to the scope of disclosure as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide, as well as taking into consideration its business
features, the Group has identified and determined 22 issues covering
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission, energy consumption, employee
welfare, occupational health and safety, training and development, supply
chain management, customer privacy, anti-corruption, and community
investment with respect to its business operation.

employees
REMEEIATHE
Community investment

B A
BRI

REER  AEBEETEENEREFNE - F
RoNBRT AR ~ AR B ER RSN BB RS0 B HETT
HFE - ARSI EARE | MRS A R
BRBOHERINEBEEFEAFENR
B e REERE -

REERE - 1@ NERWMERE I IR ERH
BRENLEEEEBSH  ARECHEE
BEEBR REE22REMAEREB(AER
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Materiality of Environmental, Social and Governance Issues
RE  HEREABENEAM

High
=
10
§ 9 17 m 20 m 21m22
24 g 18 m 19
(2]
20 6
>m
£ E 5 16m 16-m
%%4 M. 14m
%§E3 9m 10 78m12 13m
é%@ > 2m56 4m
% 1 1m 3m
= High
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 &
Relevance/Materiality to business
HEKHEE EE1
Environmental aspects Social aspects Operational aspects
RIERHE HEHE EERMH
1. GHG emissions 9.  Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
1. ORERBHN 9. FitRLH 17. FIEANKEEE
2. Energy consumption 10.  Community investment 18. Corporate governance
2. BERHERE 10. HRIE 18. REER
3. Water consumption 11.  Occupational health and safety 19.  Anti-corruption
3. K 1. BEEREZSE 19. REHF
4. Waste 12.  Labour standards in supply chain  20.  Supply chain management
4.  BEY 12, HERS TIRE 20. fHEER
5. Environmental impact of operation 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
5. REMBRRTE 13. B RER 21. BPFmEE
6.  Use of natural resources and 14. Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy
packaging material 14. EE®BF 22, BPEFLE
6. FREARERRBEML 15.  Inclusion and equal opportunities
7. Customer engagement in 15, HpkFE#e
environmental issues 16. Talent attraction and retention
7. BFZ2HRBRHE 16. MBI RIEEAS
8.  Use of chemicals
8. fFREER
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EMISSIONS

As stated above, the Group is principally engaged in accommodation
operations and provision of accommodation consultations and
accommodation facilities management services and other related
businesses. Hence, the emissions relating to air, GHG emissions and
discharge into the water and land, as well as generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major GHG emissions of the Five Branches were
the GHG generated by the electricity consumption and the waste paper
disposal at landfills. In order to minimise the energy consumption and
waste paper of the Five Branches, various sustainable development
measures have been enforced to address environmental responsibilities
within normal operating procedures, including but not limited to (i)
compact fluorescent lamp were installed as many as possible in the Five
Branches for the Year; (i) switch on and off sensors were installed in the
corridors; (iii) staff were encouraged to switch off the electronic devices,
lights and air-conditioners after the use of a room or leaving office for a
period of time such as lunch hour; (vi) air-conditioners with low efficiency
or malfunction were replaced in the Year; (v) refrigerators were kept away
from sunlight; and (vi) staff were encouraged to print only when necessary
and use recycle papers in first priority for printing so far as practicable.

Other air pollutants include nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), sulphur oxides (“SO,”)
and particulate matter (“PM”), which have adverse effects on climate,
ecosystems, air quality, habitats, agriculture, and human and animal
health. The Group generates other air pollutants through the use of its
motor vehicles.

2958
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Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Motor Vehicles ERREELENREEEN

Environmental performance Unit 2021 2020
RIEBERHE By —E-—F —ECEF
NO, Kilogram (“Kg”)

k=Rl NN D) 3.18 2.70
SO, Kg

maly NI 0.08 0.06
PM Kg

SBIF R NI 0.23 0.20

Note: The emission factors used to calculate the NO,, SO, and PM are sourced ~ MisE : RRRETEAALY) - A Y RBTF IRRLRBE

from: the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (“EPD”) WMEFHRRR : BARRREZ(TRRE])
EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation model and the United States #) EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation /5
Environmental Protection Agency’s Vehicle Emission Modeling Software — B RET BB K S B IR IR (R 7 F BV Vehicle
MOBILE 6.1; and the assumptions of 80% relative humidity, a temperature Emission Modeling Software /5 % # 5t 18 £ &1
of 25 degrees Celsius, an average speed of 30kmh, and include running £ —MOBILE®6.1 : R{RFAGEREB0% ~ AE
exhaust emissions only. BIX25E - FHRREG/DEOQNERERIE
ITERMNERNE -
. . L. — h3 =

Reduction target of air emissions & SR PR RO R BE B AR

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status

RIEBARENIERZ WEEEE HESF AREE

Air emissions

BERBER

NO, Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
A& RZZTZHFEEAR1% =N HEITH
SO, Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
et RZZTZNFEAIR 1% —E-NE HEATH

PM Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
SRR RZZEZNFERIMA1% ZE-NF TR
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GHG emissions from operations

Indicator Unit 2021 2020
B B —EZ—F —EBCEF
GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tons of Carbon dioxide equivalent
EBEREY R (EE) (“Tons of CO,e”)

—E S S ([ St EE ] 14.8 11.4
GHG emissions (Scope 2)* Tons of CO,e
REREEBER(EE2)" —SfemEEE 1,256.1 600.2
GHG emissions (Scope 3)** Tons of COe
REREEHER (S E3) “EbiEEE 35.3 36.0
Total Tons of COe
ko —E LIRSS 1,306.2 647.6
Branch gross floor area Square meter (“M?”)
DIEREmE FIARAFFIAK]D 36,853 20,645
GHG intensity Tons of CO,e/M?
BERBTE ZE iSRS F K 0.0354 0.0314

*

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

Scope 3:

The emission factor of electricity consumed is sourced from the
China Southern Power Grid in 2019.

Emission factor used = Unit electricity consumption of processing
sewage (obtained from Drainage Services Department) X Territory-
wide default value (i.e. 0.7kg/kWh) of purchased electricity. For
restaurants and catering services, assuming 70% of the fresh water
consumed will enter the sewage system. For other commercial,
residential and institutional purposes, assuming 100% of the fresh
water consumed will enter the sewage system.

It represents mainly the gasoline and diesel oil consumed by motor
vehicles.

It represents mainly the electricity purchased from power suppliers in
China.

It represents mainly the paper waste disposed at landfills and water
used.

Due to the commencement of operations of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan
Branch at the beginning of the Year, the total number of GHG emissions
increased proportionately.

#EA -
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—E-NERRENNFREFTIRE
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A BERE F=RIR)5KNEMFEE
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HEREB07FR,/ TR - HEE
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Reduction target of GHG emissions

BEREHERRERR

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
RIEBARENIER WEEEE HEF AR

GHG emission intensity (Scope 1) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
AEREENEE (HE) RZEZNFERRA1% —NEFE HEITH

GHG emission intensity (Scope 2) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
RERBBHENEE (8E2) RZEZNFERRA1% —E-NF HEITH

GHG emission intensity (Scope 3) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
mERBHNEE (HE3) RZZEZMFEERIR1% — 4 HEITH
Environmental performance from operations EEEANRERR

Environmental performance Unit 2021 2020
RIERR By —E-—F —ECEF
Hazardous waste produced Tons

BEEYESE L7 N/A i A N/A 1iE F
Intensity Tons/M?

HE Mg, 5 oK N/A T3 A N/A TE A
Non-hazardous waste produced Tons

FEEREMEL 17 112.4 10.3
Intensity Tons/M?

BE Mg, IR 0.003 0.0005
* It represents the branch gross floor area. D EMRERE -

EENEERRYREZEZYRIE

Reduction target of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

produced = 3

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status

RIERARENER R E HEF R

Hazardous waste produced N/A N/A N/A
intensity

ELENBEEENTE TNEA TNER TNEA

Non-hazardous waste produced Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
intensity

EXNEZEENEE RZZEZNFERIRA1% ZE-NF TR
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No hazardous wastes are generated from the accommmodation operations
and provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation
facilities management services and other related businesses.
Non-hazardous wastes generated from the operations in the Five
Branches are mainly office and room consumables. The staff of each
branch has promoted separation of waste such as cartons and plastic
bottles, which are placed in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers
for collection. For the consumables such as cans and used plastic bottles
of water, the building management offices of landlords have separated
them from other waste for recycling purposes.

The commencements of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch during
the Year boost the Group’s overall capacity of the available room
nights, which has direct bearing on the volume of non-hazardous
waste produced. At the same time, the Group has executed strong
hygiene controls on the provision of accommodation services during the
COVID-19 pandemic, the number of disposable kits used increased the
non-hazardous waste correspondingly.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that
has an impact relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water
and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the
Group in the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.

REEFEEE  RHEBAAREEREER
RESHAXBABELTREEEY - I
DIEREELNBEENIZ/NRAERTRE
HHRE MR - RO EETHITEYDE - WEME
KREBFHRGRAES BT R HER NS TR
B E - st Z 1 & 2 A AKE RS
Fmins  EXBTEERERDETOEN
BE%EA -

PRERIE REEERFARERAAEERRFR
BEBEATNE  HFATEYNELERER
FE o MR - AEERCOVID-19% 15 HIA]
REEBREEREMOREES - £R—
RETEBHERBIEMIEBZEY

TR AE RZH
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities
on the environment and supporting environmental protection programs.
In particular, a number of initiatives, which are designed to conserve
resources, were introduced to promote employee awareness of the need
to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emissions” section, the Group has a
series of policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by
the employees in the Five Branches. In order to increase the electricity
consumption efficiency, a number of new light emitting diodes (“LED”)
lightings were installed in the Year. Other than above, solar water heaters
and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Branch to generate daily
hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption. In
addition, shower sprinklers with low water pressure were installed in all
bathrooms of the Five Branches to reduce water consumption and water
intensity. During the Year, there was no issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose.

BERER

AEBHNRELHEDHBEOLE - AR
ERBHREER  WHIEEEBHOER
M REBTHRSANFBERNE
o

BN EXX[Bey | — Pt - AREBRAES
ERABZHEBEREFURDEERESE - B
REAEXRE RNAFERRTELA_BE
(TLED1)ARAA © B Bt bASh - mILJETRE 25
KI5 eE R KR RAVKER - DAHE B & Zok
F& » BAMRR R EIERE © peoh - BAITFE R
T E 28R TR REEKE MRS E
S BB KREIOKEE - RAFER - I
EEBMILBIEEKRAERE -

Relevant Consumptions from Operation EEEENEBER
2021 2020

Environmental performance Unit (thousand) (thousand)

—EC-—F —ECEF
RIERE B (+) ()
Energy Consumption
BEIRHFE
Electricity consumption kWh
BEME TR 2,252.8 1,179.5
Fuel consumption (Note) kWh
BREHEFE(FRE) TR 54.1 43.2
Total energy consumption kWh
HRELIRERE TR 2,306.9 1,222.7
Energy consumption intensity KWh/M?
BERERERE FTRE,FEHAK 62.6 59.2
Water Consumption
IKFE
Water consumption Cubic metre (“M®”)
IKFE MIAR(SZHAK]) 68,122 76,365
Water consumption intensity Ms/M2
IKFEEE SRR 18 3.7

*

It represents the branch gross floor area.

Note: The conversion factors used to calculate the units to kWh are sourced from
the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.
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As the Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations and ~ HAANEE T ER EEELE - REEBEZLN
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities M {ETE R E ERGESHEEL - RAFEL
management services and other related businesses, no packaging  E{ER BRI}

material was used in the Year.

Reduction target of resources consumption

Environmental KPI

Reduction Target

BB B &R

Baseline Year Status

REBRBENIER WEHEEE HEF iR B
Energy consumption intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
BEREREE RZZEZNFERRA1% ZE-NF TR
Water consumption intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
KHEFERE RZTZHFEAR1% —E-hF TR

Regarding the accommodation operations, the Group closely monitors  FLEFBE LM S - AEBEBRIE I D IEHEE
the level of energy consumption and GHG emissions of each of its  JEHEREETREHHUKTE - RS EEFEY
Branches. Every year, the Five Branches are required to set their ZBi] S/ HEE EMELRFERBE « BKREK
respective energy use efficiency, water efficiency and carbon reduction  HEJEHE B 12 - 0 HIE AT 1T IS HE DAGERL B AZ - B
targets, and come up with feasible measures to achieve them. The IEZRFEIFNEREHIMOT :

details and results achieved are listed as follows:

Projects

HH

LED and compact fluorescent lamps
LEDRIZEHE

Shower heads

TEBSA

Robotic window cleaners

Wz NEE

Solar water heaters and heat pumps
ARG EUKEE M BHR

Targets, steps taken and results achieved

B - IR BERRENER

For Five Branches, a number of compact fluorescent lamps have been
installed, in order to and have saved up much electricity as compared with
incandescent light lamps.

HRAFSEMS - BREERVARBEDHELE  MEACKAELLIFBEEDE
ELES o

Using water savings shower heads in the bathroom of the Five Branches,
relevant consumption of water is saved after installation.
RERSEAEERAEKIEEE - LREEEEEEAK -

Using robotic window cleaners in rooms of Baoan Branch, in order to
and have saved up water consumption for cleaning and increase cleaning
efficiency.

REZENTFERAKSEAREH  UEBDLHNEERAKE RIERER
e -

Solar water heaters and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Branch
to generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity
consumption. The consumption of electricity is saved in the Nanshan Branch
for water heating.

EREILELZEANGRAKEREAREETHRVKERE - AP REBHE
TERE o B LSRN ETE BUKHE T E TR HA RN A B 71085
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Projects
B=) =

Targets, steps taken and results achieved
B FIEERWEERIESHNER

Air-conditioners
=38

In 2020, number of new air-conditioners have been upgrading from old
air-conditioners for the renovation of Baoan Branch in order to reduce
the relevant consumption of electricity. Moreover, energy saving signs are
displayed to remind staff to turn off air-conditioners after use to promote
energy saving. The consumption of electricity is saved in the Baocan Branch.
RZZT_ZF  BRIEREHME 28 TEERAARETHER - UERE
BT ERE - BE - SEERETREERE - RS TMEAERZH
F - AERRIREIR - BREHE EREREE -

Non-Hazardous Waste

FBEEED

Non-hazardous waste from the Five Branches include packaging materials of
guest supplies, paper for office use and kitchen waste from restaurants. Each
Branch made their best effort to minimise the impact on the environment by
using biodegradable material for packaging materials of guest supplies. The
Five Branches promoted separation of waste such as cartons and plastic
bottles, which are placed in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers for
collection.

THESENFEEEVEEEEARBEEYE BAERAKEERHRE
Yo ZNEBERATERMBEMERATENERYE  S2RLREY
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ETEFHHERE -

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES RIERAREIR
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The Group always promotes energy-saving awareness among the
staff of the Five Branches, reminding them to switch off all lighting and
electronic devices after use. On the other hand, guests are reminded of
the importance of energy reduction through the display of energy-saving
tips in lobbies of each branch and written reminders in guest rooms.

The impact on the environment and natural resources from the
accommodation operations of the Group in PRC is minimal in the Year.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the
most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception in
increasing its awareness over the potential impact from climate change
on the Group’s business and operation.
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In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major categories
of climate-related risks, physical risks and transition risks, which may
impact businesses. Physical risks are risks related to physical impacts
of climate change which can be driven by events such as floods and
typhoons (acute risks) or longer-term shifts in climate patterns such as
sustained high temperatures and sea level rise (chronic risks). Transition
risks are risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon economy, which
may entail policy, legal, technology, and market changes to address
mitigation and adaptation requirements related to climate change.

For physical risks, the Group has developed a contingency plan for
extreme weather. For transition risks, regularly reviews global and local
government policies, regulatory updates and market trends to identify
potential climate-related risks which may have impact on the Group’s
business operation. The Group will develop a response plan when
necessary such as by changing the business strategy and modifying
the development plan in order to reduce the negative impacts of such
climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources for
managing identified climate-related risks and studying the potential
remediation measures.

During the Year, there was no climate-related risk, including physical risks
and transitional risks that had a significant impact to the Group.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital
and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical
coverage in accordance with local regulations.
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Distribution of work force classified of Five Branches classified by ~FRDERNEERNDBENLH HoHHT
difference catalogues as follows:

Social Performance Unit 2021 2020
HERR By —E-—F —EBECEF
By Gender

REBIE S

Male People

B A 34 (33%) 15 (37%)
Female People

geqis A 70 (67%) 26 (63%)
Total People

st A 104 (100%) 41 (100%)
By Age Group

RERARE S

Under 30 years old People

3055 AT A 44 (42%) 17 (41%)
30-50 years old People

30&507% A 51 (49%) 20 (49%)
Over 50 years old People

50537 A _E A 9 (9%) 4 (10%)
Total People

st A 104 (100%) 41 (100%)

By Employment Categories

R EER

Senior level People

(SF A 7 (7%) 3 (7%)
Middle level People

PR A 27 (26%) 7 (17%)
Entry level People

AFIAR A 70 (67%) 31 (76%)
Total People

st A 104 (100%) 41 (100%)
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Social Performance Unit 2021 2020
HERA B —B——% —B-8E

By Geographical Region

ZithE B E S

Hong Kong People

B A - (-%) - (%)
China People

B A 104 (100%) 41 (100%)
Total People

st A 104 (100%) 41 (100%)

During the Year, the Five Branches had 104 employees (2020: 41 RAFENRN @ AMD/EHB104REE (=T =
employees for Three Branches), of whom 100% were full-time and 100% ZF : ZM2EE41EZEE) HEE2HLAS
in permanent employment term. BEKHES -

During the Year, the Five Branches’ annually employee turnover rate isas ~ RANFEER » AEHENFEEEERA L RN

follows: T
Employee turnover rate (Note 1) 2021
BERKL R —g-—&

Total number of departed employees
BERLE BB 65 (100%)

By gender

R BI85

Male

ESlia 25 (38%)
Female

M 40 (62%)

By age group

RERARE D

Under 30 years old

30BR AR 38 (59%)
30 to 50 years old

30E505% 21 (32%)
Over 50 years old

508%A £ 6 (9%)

By geographical region

R B E D

Hong Kong

S - (%)
China

=8 65 (100%)
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Note 1: The turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number of departed

employees by the average number of employees in the specified
category.

The Group places emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a
working environment which is free from any form of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable
composition and balance.

The Group has enhanced its employee handbook with effect from
January 2015 which is applicable for the Five Branches. Such employee
handbook is developed in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC and
has been distributed to all employees since they commence working for
the Group.

The remuneration and position of the employees of the accommodation
operations will be adjusted which are based on the results of evaluation
of individual working performance and efficiency. Staff bonus is based on
the performance appraisal and operating results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning and even a
dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are to be reported to the human and
administration department. In the Year, no incident of serious misconduct
was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented
with reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Payment of Wages
Tentative Provisions and other applicable laws and regulations that has
a significant impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on the Group in the
Year.
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No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly required
to follow the operating procedures, which include but not limited to (i)
pay attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, if found,
should immediately report to the supervisor; (i) use both hands to
handle the carts; (iii) use a ladder or chair to take items from a height
or ask colleagues for help; (iv) wipe out the slippery or oily working
areas immediately in order to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged
machines or appliances to avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools
and safety equipment; and (vii) strictly enforce the industry norms and
professional operation. Designated staff has been deployed to monitor
the implementation of such procedures.

Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Five Branches. First aid,
fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly
performed. Two fire drills were conducted in the Year for the Baoan,
Nanshan and Huizhou Branch.

For electrical works, the Five Branches have employed electrical
technicians who have valid licences granted by relevant government
officials.

During the Year, the numbers of lost days due to work injury for Five
Branches are as follows:
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2021
—E-—fF

Total number of working days
TIEREAAE 23,827

Number of work-related fatalities
E T T AIALK

Number of work injury

ERCYN |

Lost days due to work injury
HITEERENTIEEH

Injury rate %

RIGHEY

Lost day rate %

BRBELEEY
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During the Year and each of the two financial years preceding the Year,
no work-related fatalities occurred for the employees of the Group.

Working conditions under coronavirus disease 2019 (the
“COVID-19”)

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, the Group has adopted a
series of measures to protect the health of employees, which include but
not limited to (i) each of the employees and guests is required to wear a
mask at all times in of each branch, disposable masks are provided to
employees every day; (i) all employees of each branch are vaccinated;
(iiiy guests are only able to check in when they have a valid health QR
code; (iv) individual air-conditioners are placed in guest rooms and are
regularly maintained and cleaned; (v) public areas of each branch such
as elevators and lobby are sterilised at least 3 times a day; and (vi) hand
sanitizers are provided to all guests.

In addition, in order to respond to emergencies and improve first-aid skills
of the employees, the Group had provided first-aid training courses to its
employees.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Law of the PRC on Work Safety, Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has
a significant impact on the Group relating to provide a safety working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards in the
Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has been committed to providing on-the-job training of
its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently
and effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which
may arise. During the Year, quarterly training courses were provided to
the employees including but not limited to customer check-in and check-
out procedures, room services techniques, disinfection techniques for
guest rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ complaint, handling of
items left by customers and so on. The employees participated actively in
the training courses. For certain external training courses recommended
by the Group, such fees of training course are borne by the Group in
accordance with the specific guidelines of reimbursement stated in the
employee handbook.

During the Year, the employee training rate for Five Branches is as
follows:

Employee training rate

EEZIIL xR
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2021
—E-—F

Total number of hours of training received by the employees
1B B IBIR AR 2R

Average hours of training per employee (Note 1)
(% of employees who received training) (Note 2)

BiIE 8 FIHZ IS (ZlEB B L) (HFE2)

Employee trained by gender
REBIESNZIEE

Male

XL

Female

g

Employee trained by employment category
REREREINZIES

Senior management

EREEE

Middle management

hREEE

General staff

—HRET

208

2 (86%)

28 (31%)

61 (69%)

7 (8%)

25 (28%)

57 (64%)
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Note 1: It is calculated by dividing the number of employees received training
in the specified category by the average number of employees in the
specified category.

Note 2: The percentage of employees who received training includes

employees who left Five Branches during the Year.

For recreation activities, the Group often organises a variety of
physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports
competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group complies with
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for
the Five Branches.

The Group conducts interviews with selected applicants for positions
of the Group to understand their backgrounds and motivations for
working for the Group. For registration as an employee, all employees
must present valid documents and copies to the Group as follows: (i)
identity card, academic proof such as diploma or degree certificate, title
certificate, vocational qualification certificate, English grade certificate; (i)
social security card; (i) medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos;
and (v) other relevant information and documents required by the Group.
The above procedures can ensure no child labour or forced labour will be
employed in the accommodation operations.

All employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are
not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written form. The
compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions of
Labour Law of the PRC.

The human resources function of the Group is responsible for reviewing
the measures to ensure they remain effective for avoiding child and
forced labour. When any child labour or forced labour is discovered,
the Group would terminate the employment relationship, report to the
relevant authorities and arrange to provide any necessary assistance to
the subject persons if required.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Labour Law of
the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, Protection
of Minors of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure
high quality of service to customers. Specific attentions have been paid
to promote the health and safety consumables and services of the Five
Branches.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the
values of honesty, integrity in order to minimise environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and fairess in the supply chain management.
When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account the factors such
as quality of services and products, past performance, reputation and the
degree of environmental and social responsibility of the suppliers. When
dealing with suppliers of goods and services, the approval procedures
are in place to ensure that all supplier engagements are monitored and
approved by the appropriate level of management. The Group expects
major suppliers to observe the same environmental, social, health and
safety and governance policies in their operating practices as those
adopted by the Group.

The major suppliers for accommodation operations are suppliers of
bottles of water, washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking
water provided to customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles
of water from a well-known brand which has a series of green production
procedures. For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier
to provide hygiene licence and environmental protection certificate prior
to placing any order. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier
to use pest control materials or consumables which fulfil the required
standards of local laws and regulations.

The Group regularly conducts random checks on the qualifications and
the products of the suppliers that have been engaged to ensure they
maintain the requisite standards.
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During the Year , the number of suppliers by geographical region for Five
Branches is as follows:

RAEER - AEDERMIR R 25D 1t e
GE RN

Social KPI 2021
HEREBENIEE —E-—F
Mainland China

A B A 105
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY EmET

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms of
products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure compliance
with the laws and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operate. The Group requires its employees to comply with applicable
governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Five
Branches. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape
exercises are regularly performed. Daily guest room cleaning services and
regular hygiene inspection are maintained from time to time. If a customer
complains on initially assigned guest room, the front line staff will arrange
another guest room until it is satisfied by the customer. During the Year,
there were 16 instances of complaints at the Five Branches, none of
which were related to hygiene and smoking.

Customer Feedback and Handling

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from the customers.
The Group provides a variety of communication channels, for instance,
social media, membership channel, phone hotline, emails and websites.
Regular communication channels and feedback systems are in place to
gather information on satisfaction and suggestions for improvement from
the customers.

The Group consolidated and comprehensively analysed the customers’
feedback and monitor the level of customer satisfaction in its business.
Follow-up actions, including internal evaluation and modification of
training programs for employees, formulation of improvement plan and
refining the existing management procedures will be taken to address the
identified issues. Feedback will be provided to the customers in a timely
manner.
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During the Year, there were no cases of complaints received against the
Group’s products and services due to health and safety issues.

Data Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group deals with lots of private and confidential information of
its customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working
practices.

The Group is committed to compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to intellectual property right (“IP rights”) by valuing and
protecting its intellectual properties through renewals of patent and
trademark. In order to ensure that the customer’s IP rights of products
are properly protected during the outsourcing processes to suppliers,
a confidentiality agreement regarding IP rights must be signed before
engagement. The Group enters standard employment contracts with its
employees which contain provisions on IP rights and confidentiality.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Patent
Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has a
significant impact relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress on the Group in the Year.

No significant fines had been reported in the Year.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in any form are
strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards
of conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in order to
promote the integrity environment in the workplace. Any employee is
prohibited from giving and accepting of advantages, by using the excuse
of work or the authority granted from the Group. The advantages include
but not limited to money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and
entertainment.
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All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the
employee handbook, which includes but is not limited to (i) protection
of customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii)
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate
exceeding RMB100; (iii) prohibit to use the name or authority of the
Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods
without obtaining approval from relevant superiors. Such guidelines are
repeatedly emphasised in anti-corruption training. During the Year, the
Group provides anti-corruption education and training (through webcast
and circulation of e-training materials) to its directors and staff on a
regular basis to raise their awareness towards ethical and corruption
issues.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the employees.
The human resources department may terminate the employment
contract with the employee who carries out dishonest acts as stated in
the employee handbook. The content of the complaint should be clear
to the fact that it is forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual
basis or vent their anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i)
the individual is unfairly treated in which relevant superior handling of
the problem is not fair, abuse of power or combat retaliation; and (i) the
behaviour of individual causes damage to the interests of the Group.
All employees can raise their complaint by putting a written letter into a
complaint box located at the reception desk of each branch, by mail to
human resources department or even by verbal presentation.

The Group continuously monitors the implementation of the preventative
measures and whistle-blowing procedures.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year.

There was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees in the Year.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. This is realised by first meeting the needs of the
employees and then further extending the caring and services to their
families and to the surrounding community.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate
culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various charitable
events and community service.

The Group believes that such entertaining corporate team-building
activities for staff are not only beneficial to the health of staff, but are
also relaxing and conducive to team building outside of the workplace,
improving cross-departmental communications, creating a chance to
know each other in different departments and promoting fellowship
at workplace, leading to a more harmonious and productive working
environment.
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The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 7 and the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 18.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in accommodation operations, provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities management
services and other related business. The foregoing discussions form
parts on the business review as contained in this Report of the Directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 93 of this annual
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2021.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders including share premium account and
accumulated losses.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 96 respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was approximately 42.1% (2020: 52.9%) of the total and the percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
15.2% (2020: 18.4%) and the Directors do not consider any one
customer to be influential to the Group.
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The main suppliers of the Group comprise suppliers of disposable
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 44.2% (2020: 53.2%) of the total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 20.1%
(2020: 24.1%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2021.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of principal
amount of HK$22,767,000 (2020: HK$37,026,000) from the Controlling
Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Save for the borrowings, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowings for both years.

Moreover, on top of the above borrowings, the Controlling Shareholder
has also made available credit facilities of HK$350,000,000 and
HK$200,000,000 respectively, to the Company under substantially the
same terms with the Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowing under which
the Company may request for drawdown at any time prior on or to 7
August 2022 and 27 August 2023 respectively. Any borrowing made will
be unsecured and interest-free. As at 31 December 2021, credit facility
of amount of HK$527,233,000 (2020: HK$312,974,000) is available for
use.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

The Group had no capitalised interest during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
BB EBEZERER QR

AEBFENHRERSEREINEHEES
REBR - IR AR MR K RETT
HBEWAMEER BHE-_T-_—F+=-A
“t+—HALYREE  AEERAHEESH
IHIRBETEN44.2%(ZFE=FF : 53.2%)

i 1) B A L P O BB AR SR B AR B £V 20.1%
TETF 241%) ©

E_E-—F+-_A=t—HItWBFE -
BEEE  HEZERHEASNEAAR G
RUBESANFEN - BAEAREEEITRAS%
A EEIVRAREENAARP KA K EEGHE
BE R o

RITHEEREAMERR

RZBZ—F+=-A=+—0 AEEHEAR
B IERE IR 3R 2 {8 5N £ §822,767,000/8 7T (=
T -F4F 1 37,026,000 7T) © B AEEE -
B ENIREREEREE - BRIt 2o - REEE
B R T AR E R IBITIE RN o

BEAN - B B AR R AN - SRR R IR E R IE
B 7R AR AR SR B SR BUB R B0 SRR AR A RIHR 1
& %8 73350,000,0007% 7T £ 200,000,000/ 7T #Y
méﬂﬁﬁr WHBIAEARFTR T ==
FNAEBEE_=FNA-F+tEB=HZA
BERF ESKIREY - HIREMERRIAEER KL
BN -RZBE-—F+-A=+—8  Ht
527,233,000 70 (ZF = F4F : 312,974,000
BTN EERERENR -

MEERL

(E_E_—F+A=+—RHILFE  £&
EYBRBEENMCMNE(ZT_FF &) -




Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2021
is set out on page 196 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wu (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Chung Tin Yan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Ms. Li Zhou

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 19 to 22 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service agreements entered into by the Company with each of the
executive Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during
the year ended 31 December 2021, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of
the executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify any executive Director against any liability attaching to him in
connection with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason
of being a Director, and in which the judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles
of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the directors shall
vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements. Remuneration packages of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following Director had interest in the shares of the Company as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO:
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Approximately
percentage
of the issued

Capacity/ Number of share capital

Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 1)

HEBTRE

BHANEDL

EEHE B REmtE EEREE (BF7E1)

Yuan Fuer (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 321,580,510 shares 71.72%
corporation

wER(ME2) REHLEE 2 s 321,580,5100% 71.72%

Note 1:  The approximate shareholding percentage is based on the number of — BtiF1 : BIAREE DL IER T -_—F+=-A

shares in issue as at 31 December 2021 of 448,363,708.

Note 2. These 321,580,510 shares were registered in the name of Hehui

International Development Limited (“Hehui”). Mr. Yuan Fuer held the
entire issued share capital of Hehui and was deemed to be interested in
the 321,580,510 shares in which Hehui was interested pursuant to the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as was
known to the Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMATRAERQTR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS 15 #HRARGO REEZE 2EERK
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND =

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors, the MBS R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 "
following substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the A NARABETERE(FEER FHEB) (X IE
Company, not being Directors or the chief executive of the Company, AARZBZBHTBITHMAE )RR HPHEESA
had interests in the shares as recorded in the register required to be kept &R AR BRI E S LS 150 F 33615 1F

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: A Sl
Aggregate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity ordinary shares (Note 1)
BRETRDL
®E g4 ZRRHE (MH5E1)
Hehui Beneficial owner 321,580,510 71.72%

EmEAA
Chen Hui (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 35,740,071 7.97%
BRE (FtEE2) R ENERE 2

Note 1:  The approximate shareholding percentages are based on the number of ~ FieE1 - AR BEE AL IER T Z—F+=A4
shares in issue as at 31 December 2021 of 448,363,708. =+—HB #1719 448,363,708 °

Note 2:  As disclosed in “Form 1 — Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice” filed ~ FizE2 : AR B A ER T —NF_A=Z+HR

by Mr. Chen Hui on 20 February 2018, Mr. Chen Hui controls 100% of [FRE1—EAARBRFBAN] ZEE - BRESL
the shares in %5 % f 2, which in turn controls 100% of the shares in AHEBEZRHS100% 2B mMERHE
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and CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC each holds FUND SERIES SPC 2 100%R%# - Fith - £
interests in 35,740,071 shares of the Company directly. 2 2 CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION

FUND SERIES SPC & H # N & 2 7
35,740,071 J& A& 15 P B fEa ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Yuan Fuer, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate
beneficial controlling shareholder and chairman of each of Shenzhen
Hazens and Hazens. Shenzhen Hazens is principally engaged in
property development and property management services business
and holds interests in several hotels which are located in the United
States of America and managed by multinational hotel management
groups through its subsidiaries, and Hazens’ business scope includes
projects related to accommodation business. Given that the hotel
business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries is not conducted in
the target markets of the Group or places where the Group has existing
and ongoing business operations, and that the Group has a right of
refusal under the relevant accommodation consultancy framework
agreement entered into with Hazens which grants the Group the priority
to obtain the accommodation business proposed to be conducted
by Hazens or its associate with independent third parties, and that
the majority of the members of the Board are independent and not
connected with the boards of Shenzhen Hazens and Hazens and their
respective subsidiaries, the Group is capable of and has been operating
independently of, and at arm’s length from the business of Shenzhen
Hazens and Hazens and their respective subsidiaries, no competition is
considered to exist during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the above and the sections headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of
the Directors, the management of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in Note 35
to the financial statements and those exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, there was no

(1)  transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director or any entity
connected with any Director is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly;

(2)  contract of significance between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders or
their subsidiaries; or
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(8) contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, by any of the Company’s
controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries

subsisting during or at the end of the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company which was not
contract of service with Directors or persons engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company was entered into or existed during the year
under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 35 (other than Note
35(c)) to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with all
applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

On 16 November 2018 and 27 August 2021, Hehui International
Development Limited (“He Hui” or “Controlling Shareholder”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company which is wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Fuer
has made available credit facilities up to amount of HK$350,000,000
and HK$200,000,000, respectively, to the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder’s Credit Facilities”) on normal commercial terms or better to
the Group. The borrowings drawn under the Controlling Shareholder’s
Credit Facilities shall be repayable on the date as set out in the individual
borrowing agreements and are interest-free and unsecured. The
Company may request for drawdown at any time prior on or to 7 August
2022 and 27 August 2023 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has borrowings of approximately
HK$22,767,000 (2020: HK$37,026,000) from the Controlling
Shareholder. The borrowings are repayable on demand, interest-free and
unsecured.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has conducted the following
continuing connected transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

On 28 May 2021, the Company and Hazens Holdings Group (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Hazens”), a company controlled by Mr. Yuan Fuer, a connected
person of the Company, entered into a consultancy framework
agreement (“2021 Consultancy Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Group will provide accommodation consultancy services to
Hazens and its subsidiaries in respect of feasibility of accommodation
business at the locations proposed by Hazens and the design of
accommodation places for a term commencing from 28 May 2021 to 31
December 2021 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the Consultancy Framework Agreement are set out

below:

Date

Parties

Term

Nature of
transactions

28 May 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock
Exchange)

(i) The Company; and
(i)  Hazens

The term commences from 28 May 2021
and ends on 31 December 2021 (both days
inclusive)

Pursuant to the 2021 Consultancy Framework
Agreement, the Group agreed to provide the
following accommodation consultancy services
to Hazens and its subsidiaries within the term
above.

The accommodation consultancy services will
include, but not limited to: (i) seeking suitable
location in relation to the accommodation
business; (ii) performing market research of
the location of accommodation business
proposed by Hazens; (iii) providing advice
on certain interior and external design for the
accommodation business; (iv) advising on
estimated renovation cost and analysis on
the financial forecast of the accommodation
business; (v) preparing operation manual
and quality manuals with reference to ISO
standards; and (vi) assisting Hazens in seeking
construction contractor for the accommodation
business.

REBEFERN - REBBEITUTNERE ETR
BIE14ATVIE TR ENFERER S -

RZBE-—FRA=+/\H  ARRHEEIEE
BEBCRIDBRAR([EIE] - AARARM
HEATREREETEHA QR ET LR MR
ERpS ([ T —FEBERRSER G
) E AEEBURAEIERUEN
FEBEEMAITHEREREERORRALER
HABERRSE e -_2-—HA=-+/\H
BE_Z -+ _A=+—H(BEEEW
A) -

R RISHEZR ek £ 2R ESIIT

B D 2B —FAA=Z+NH
(B FIR SRR 1E)
HEDA ) AR K
iy AL
HAPR C BZE—FRAZTN

Az —-—F+—-A
T H&E&ER(BEER

mA)

REME BT - —FEERR
BHEZR W% - A ERERE
£ R AR A ERE
KB AR A NMEERE
AR TS ©

F BRI E TR
B ()EREAEEEE
REEERNE ; ()54 LR
HRRNEE L EETT
HHEE (NBEBEHEE
REETEARMKEZRR
INMBRRET AR - (VWL E
TBIE B RIS TIRMIRE K
R MTEE RIS TER D
T+ WERRISOZEMIE
SIEBEERFNEETF
fit : RV)BBIA EAME
BEESHRERHET -

Annual Report 2021
TECFEFER




B s0

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Pricing basis

Payment terms

Hazens should be responsible for applying
the licenses (such as industry and commerce,
taxation, fire safety measures, health, property
ownership or rights of use, and related business
licenses (such as hotel operating license), etc.)
and relevant expenses. Hazens may also seek
qualified construction teams to decorate the
property of accommodation business according
to the standard recommended by the Group.

The parties will enter into individual agreement
for each transaction setting out specific terms
of the services including, among others, scope
of services, service fees, settlement method
and payment arrangement. Such terms will
be consistent with the terms of the 2021
Consultancy Framework Agreement.

The basis of service fee was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between the Group
and Hazens after taking into consideration of
the market conditions, the Group’s current
pricing policy of the services and on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than those offered
to other customers of the Group who are
independent third parties for comparable
services.

If there is no relevant market price or
comparable services that the Group provide to
independent third parties, the service fees will
be determined by the relevant costs and past
performance of such consulting services of the
Group and take reference to the market price
of such comparable services.

Payment of service fees will be made according
to the payment terms of the individual
agreement for each transaction between the
parties, which will be determined by arm’s
length negotiations between the parties with
reference to, among others, the amount of
service fees payable.
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Right of first refusal:

Since Hazens is a company controlled by
Mr. Yuan Fuer, a connected person of the
Company, the accommodation business in
relation to the 2021 Consultancy Framework
Agreement, if conducted, might constitute
competing business. To avoid any potential
conflicts and unapproved competition
with the Group, Hazens agreed that if the
accommodation business in relation to the
2021 Consultancy Framework Agreement will
be conducted by Hazens or its associate (other
than the Company and its subsidiaries) with
other independent third parties, Hazens shall
notify the Group in written form.

The Group has the priority to obtain such
business opportunities regarding the
accommodation business and the Group must
inform Hazens whether the Group will exercise
the right of first refusal within 30 days after
receiving the written notice.

The Group can only exercise the right of first
refusal after obtaining all independent non-
executive directors approval. If there is a conflict
of interest or potential conflict of interest from
the directors of the Group, the directors with
conflicts of interest (if any) shall be excluded in
all board meetings and its voting right regarding
whether to exercise the right of first refusal.
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Annual Cap and Basis of Annual Cap

The Company estimates the annual cap of HK$8.8 million for the financial
year ending 31 December 2021. The annual cap is calculated based on
the estimated demand of relevant services by Hazens under the 2021
Consultancy Framework Agreement and the prevailing price of similar
services provided by the Group to its independent third party customers.

In order to determine the service fees for each transaction and to ensure
that the service fees charged by the Group would not be less favourable
than the service fees charged by the independent third party in the
market for similar services, the Group will (i) make reference to the pricing
of similar services with independent third party customers; (i) review
historical transactions between Hazens and its independent third party
suppliers for similar services (if the Group could not obtain information in
(iy for comparison); and (jii) obtain price quotations from its independent
third party suppliers and mark up with a reasonable profit margin. In order
to ensure the pricing basis of connected transactions will be complied
with, the Group will make reference to the pricing in all similar services
in the past 12 months prior to the proposed connected transactions
(the “Review Period”). If the Group has not provided any similar services
in the Review Period, the Group will request its connected persons,
e.9. Hazens, to provide details on at least two historical transactions in
the Review Period with and/or quotations of its independent third party
suppliers to assess the market price and assess the profitability after
taking into account its relevant costs, such as price quotations from
its independent third party suppliers and own administrative costs. In
rare cases both the Group and its connected persons have not been
involved in similar services in the Review Period, the Group will determine
the pricing based on price quotations from its independent third party
suppliers and own administrative costs and mark up with a reasonable
profit margin with reference to similar services in the market.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”), the Company’s auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. HLB has issued their
unqualified letter to the Board containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with the Listing Rules and confirming the matters as
stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) either on normal commercial terms or better; and (i) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22
June 2011 and was valid until 21 June 2021. The purpose of the Scheme
was to attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group. The Scheme was an
incentive to encourage the participants to perform their best in achieving
the goals of the Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Under the Scheme, the Board might, at its discretion, invite any director,
full-time employee or part time employee with weekly working hours of
10 hours or above of the Group, any adviser or consultant (in the areas
of legal, technical, financial or corporate managerial) to the Group, any
provider of goods and/or services to the Group, any other person who, at
the sole determination of the Board, had contributed to the Group, and
any trustee of a trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any of the
above persons to become participants of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company should not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition to the foregoing 30%
limit, the total number of shares which should be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company should not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date of completion of the
placing of the shares of the Company for the purpose of the listing on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 14 July 2011 i.e.
18,000,000 shares (which represents approximately 4.01% of the total
issued shares as at the date of this annual report).
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period should not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue.

An offer of share options under the Scheme should be deemed to have
been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the share options duly signed by the
grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within 28 days from the date of the offer.

Share options granted under the Scheme could be exercised at any time
during the option period after they have been granted by the Board but,
in any event, not more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant.
The share options granted should lapse automatically (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme, subject to any
adjustments made pursuant to reorganisation of capital structure, should
be a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of grant of the relevant share options and notified to the participant and
should be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date on which the relevant share options are granted; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant share options are
granted; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and remained in force
for 10 years from the adoption date, i.e. until 21 June 2021.

Further details about the principal terms of the Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011.

During the validity period of the Scheme in the financial year ended 31
December 2021, the Company did not granted any share option under
the Scheme. No share option under this Scheme was outstanding as at
the date of expiry of the Scheme i.e. 21 June 2021 (31 December 2020:
Nil).
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the government in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme under which certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees are contributed to the pension schemes. Particulars of
these schemes are set out under “Employee benefits” in Note 4 of
the consolidated financial statements. There is no provision under the
pension schemes which provides for forfeiture of contributions which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as independent
auditor to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited on 29 June 2020 and has been re-appointed as
independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021. A resolution
will be proposed to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as independent auditor of the
Company.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Yuan Fuer
Chairman

7 March 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A% BE 3R

Bl #7 & 3t 6 F 3% T A R A 8
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 93 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$4,016,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 and, as of
that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$59,375,000 and HK$1,972,000 respectively. As
stated in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section above, we have
determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

RREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNFSNAEEFERERSR

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”), goodwill and right-of-use assets
(“ROU assets”)

Refer to notes 18, 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The Group had interests in various branches in the People
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The carrying amounts of
PPE, goodwill and ROU assets were approximately of
HK$45 450,000, HK$2,064,000 and HK$159,519,000
respectively as at 31 December 2021. Given the adverse
impact brought by COVID-19 pandemic, there is a risk that
the carrying amounts of PPE, goodwill and ROU assets are
higher than their recoverable amounts.

Management considers each branch to be a separate
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and performs impairment
assessments, where impairment indicators exist, to
determine the recoverable amount of the branches’ PPE,
goodwill and ROU assets. The recoverable amount is
determined as the CGU’s value-in-use, which involves
estimation of future business performance and key
assumptions including discount rates, occupancy rates,
average room rates, etc.. Based on the impairment
assessments carried out by management, no impairment
loss were recognised in respect of PPE, goodwill and ROU
assets during the year ended 31 December 2021.

We focused on this area as the impairment assessments
and determination of recoverable amounts involve significant
management’s judgments and estimations.

QOur audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments including, but not limited to the
followings:

° Evaluating management’s future cash flow forecasts
and the process by which they were prepared for each
CGU, including testing the mathematical accuracy of
the underlying calculations and compared the future
cash flow forecasts to the latest approved budgets
and actual results of the prior period;

° Assessing the appropriateness of methodologies
used by management with the support of the external
valuers;

° Assessing the key assumptions including occupancy
rates and average room rates applied in the forecasts
by comparing them to historical results, economic and
industry forecasts;

° Assessing external professional valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity, and reading the valuation
reports prepared by the external valuers; and

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by the external
valuers.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found the
assessments of the recoverability of the carrying amounts
of PPE, goodwill and ROU assets were supported by the
evidence we obtained.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we WHHERZES BB EEH @ BB EZS
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the S AHIRG AP HHRRZ2BEZXZREAEENE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore T8 - M ##EK BEHEZEE o T MIEZBET R
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ EHERBZEEE  BRIBERIEETATR
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the R TEIEEE @ siEBBERLNBELT &
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a  IBFEHMA KMz HRER BB E EEMEKD
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse B & REERBEASN AR - BIFRFE
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh — E RS T ERBZEE -

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent HEAKRBIZEMBE 2 EZBEEEEARE

auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat. o

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited BEEgHEEMERA R
Certified Public Accountants HESETED

Yu Chi Fat REHR

Practising Certificate Number: P05467 HEFBERI - P05467
Hong Kong, 7 March 2022 B _F=H+H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEeBEsREMEZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &}

E_E_—F+_-_A=1+—HLEFE

2021 2020
s —E-EF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 7E FET FAT
Revenue g 8 70,564 50,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE (21,952) (17,752)
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - R LR ETE
equipment (8,160) (3,069)
Employee benefit expenses EERAFX 9 (21,341) (14,506)
Utilities N (3,456) (1,705)
Other operating expenses HEfth @ 11 (11,988) (11,333)
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair BEAFER ABR(EATE
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) STABRDZEREE
2 AFEMEE 2,749 =
Other income Hapg A 12 1,539 3,336
Operating profit EERR 7,955 5,649
Finance costs BB 13 (8,105) (5,505)
(Loss) profit before tax BRBLAT (B8 &R (150) 144
Income tax expense s i 14 (3,866) (2,605)
Loss for the year FAEBE 15 (4,016) (2,461)
Other comprehensive (loss) income: Hitb2m(EE) WA :
Item that may be subsequently reclassified —H & A2 E 2 B2 Eas2 B
to profit or loss: g :
Exchange differences on translating foreign B /EINEFRE A 2 IE H =58
operations (10) 889
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEEAE (4,026) (1,572)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: LA~ A & FE{L & R FI (B518)
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEWN 4,977 2,063
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (8,993) (4,524)
(4,016) (2,461)
Total comprehensive income (loss) DTATEEFRZEKA
for the year attributable to: (B8 ) #%5
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE 2SN 5,250 3,224
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (9,276) (4,796)
(4,026) (1,572)
Earnings per share FREF 17
- Basic (Hong Kong cents) —ZEARCGE) 1.11 0.46
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) —#5E (B1) 1.11 0.46

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R IR R &R

As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f T -THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MosE F#BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KEEAE 18 45,450 36,332
Rental deposits HEZS 19 4,567 2,720
Goodwill [EES 20 2,064 2,003
Prepayments TERIE 19 63 104
Right-of-use assets FREEE 21 159,519 163,180
Deferred tax assets RIET IR A 22 2,051 2,690
213,714 207,029
Current assets REBEE
Rental deposits HEZS 19 44 2,722
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE « e R HALEW IR
other receivables 19 4,216 1,150
Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFABGRZ CREE 23 2,749 =
Trade receivables FEUER 3K 24 4,786 548
Inventories Ve 25 379 110
Bank and cash balances RITMIR B4 14,296 19,969
26,470 24,499
Total assets HMERE 240,184 231,528
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEATBR SR R EL A FE T 5RIE 26 35,975 12,238
Tax payable FER TR 2,078 2,214
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 25,025 30,158
Borrowings & 29 22,767 37,026
85,845 81,636
Net current liabilities FRBAE (59,375) (57,137)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERE 154,339 149,892

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B AR R R

As at 31 December 2021

RZZFE=——F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f T -THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfsE FExT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Provision for asset retirement WEEEERREME 27 480 444
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 155,831 147,394
156,311 147,838
Net (liabilities) assets F(EEEE (1,972) 2,054
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital f& s 30 4,484 4,484
Reserves {15 7,839 2,689
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE AR
the Company 12,323 7,073
Non-controlling interests eI AE R (14,295) (5,019)
(Capital deficiency) Total equity (BB RS A0 (1,972) 2,054

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 195 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 March 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Fuer
RER
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REBEEF1BENGETBHRERERN
T - AtREERSERRETH

WEHATATREKEE
Chung Tin Yan
EXRAT
Director
EE

B Y B 8 P A0 5 B 75 R 3R AT sk — 6
2o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEH X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF - —F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ}\%ﬁ Non-
Share Share Exchange Statutory ~ Shareholders’  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  contributions losses Sub-total interests Total
s RpEE EX G EERE RREE ZitEE gt FERES &t
Note () Note (i) Note (i Note (i)
i) itz ) B i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T T
At1 January 2020 R-%8-%%
-A-H 4,484 261578 40 1,743 9,112 (273,108) 3,849 (223) 3,626
Proft (oss)for theyear AT (E5f2) - - - - - 2,063 2,063 (4,524) (2,461)
Other comprehensive Eh2ENA
income (oss) (Bstg) = = 1,161 = = = 1,161 (1) 889
At31December2020  W=B=%%
andatiJanuay2021 +=A=1-H
RH=2=-F
-A-B 4,484 261,578 1,201 1,743 9,112 (271,045) 7073 (5,019) 2,054
Proft (oss)for theyear AR (E5t8) - - - - = 4917 491 (8,999) (4016)
Other comprehensive Eth2ERA
income (oss) (&) - - PIE] - - - PIE] (283) (10)
Transfer of reserve BESRER - - - 1,770 = (1,770) = - -
At31December2021  R=Z=-%
TZR=1-A 4,484 261,578 1,474 3513 9,112 (267,838) 12,323 (14,295) (1,972)
Notes: BsE
0] Share premium 0) 10 m B

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC.

(ivy  Shareholders’ contributions

The shareholders’ contribution represent waiver of interest expenses on
borrowings from shareholders.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENEESRE
(Loss) profit before tax BrAi AT (B8 )& F (150) 144
Adjustments for: TR
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (29) (34)
Reversal of provision for asset retirement HEEAEEREERE - (103)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BELRRETE 8,160 3,069
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 21,952 17,752
Finance cost on provision for asset retirement A EEREBENRERA 22 23
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WsEYIZE - B KR 14 =
Gain on lease modification HE BRIz (403) =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEME 8,083 5,482
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID- 198RS R 2 - (1,219)
Fair value gain on financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFABRCCRIEELZ
~NEEKES (2,749) -
Operating profit before working capital changes HEE BB E R 34,900 25,114
Change in trade and other receivables JRE s R AR B LAt B USRI B (7,148) ©)
Change in rental deposits HEZRSHES) 910 (1,971)
Change in inventories GFENEE (262) 41
Change in trade and other payables JE AT B S5R % L Ath B A< SR IE Y B D 5,288 1,134
Change in provision for asset retirement HEEAEERBEY - (377)
Cash generated from operations REERE 33,688 23,932
Income tax paid EASETISHL (3,292) (3,893)
Net cash generated from operating activities L EE TS RIR & 55 30,396 20,039
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 —= $
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities RETFHEENESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BE&&E (16,337) (26,309)
Interest received BEFE 29 34
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEFTRAMIR S FEE (16,308) (26,275)
Cash flows from financing activities REIHEENESRE
Proceeds from borrowings EENGIECE = 21,260
Repayment of borrowings BEBN (14,480) =
Advance from non-controlling interests IR BN 17,873 6,884
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (23,202) (12,789
Net cash (used in) generated from B EEEN(FTA) TSR & F 58
financing activities (19,809) 15,355
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERESEEYORLD)EM
cash equivalents ezt (5,721) 9,119
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUNRE RN EEY
of the year 19,969 11,201
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN [ R R Eh ) R 48 (351)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FANRERELSZEY 14,296 19,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
Suite 1702, 17/F., World-Wide House, No. 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Its parent is Hehui International Development Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and is beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Yuan
Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), who is also a non-executive director of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the accommodation operations and provision
of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) which is same as the functional currency of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
the nearest thousand (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$4,016,000
(2020: HK$2,461,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021
and, as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$59,375,000 (2020: HK$57,137,000)
and HK$1,972,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

—REH
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Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
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DRI AEBPIREEHEFR19
SRIRBRAEATIZ1702F - AR RIRG R
BERMEXFBER AR (B E
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H £} 8] AHehui International Development
Limited ([ ARAR R 1) © R A RN KB E
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AIMIEMITES -
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HfB AR (REAI AEE]) EBNT
ZEARAMBE(TFREDESEBEZER
RUEEEBAMEBEREEERE SR
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(TH&T) °
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§ - RNEE B FEE 44,016,000 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

GOING CONCERN (continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financial support of the Controlling Shareholder and the
beneficial owner, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group and the Controlling Shareholder has
undertaken not to demand repayment for the borrowings due by
the Group of approximately HK$22,767,000, until the Company
can meet all the other obligations. The Controlling Shareholder
has agreed to provide adequate funds for the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due, of which the beneficial owner has agreed
to undertake the amount. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had unused credit facility of approximately HK$527,233,000
granted by the Controlling Shareholder, of which approximately
HK$327,000,000 and HK$200,000,000 will be expired on 7 August
2022 and 27 August 2023 respectively.

In addition, the Group obtained consent from Chengdu Partner
and Wuhan Partner (as defined in Note 37) that they would not
request for immediate repayment for the amount due to Chengdu
Partner and Wuhan Partner of approximately HK$12,678,000 and
HK$12,895,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021.

Further, the outbreak of COVID-19 has brought additional
uncertainties to the Group’s operations. In order to improve the
Group’s operating performance and alleviate its liquidity risk,
management is implementing measures to broaden its revenue
base, control costs and contain capital expenditures. Further
investments in accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services will be made only when the Group has
sufficient financial resources after meeting its day-to-day working
capital and other capital commitment requirements.

The directors of the Company are therefore of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to adjust the value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

2.

GOING CONCERN (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections. The cash flow projections cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2021. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, based on these cash flow projections
and in light of the above, the Group will have sufficient financial
resources in the coming twelve months to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatory effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS
16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting
Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an
entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs
Accounting Guideline 5
(Amendments)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020"

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations’

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF - —F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are observable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF - —F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favorable or unfavorable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquire (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net amount the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquire (if any), the excess is recongised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquire prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly
of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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4.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Gooadwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwiill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operations and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements, and
is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases within
the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration of components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease component.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4., RBGEVBRRNEERE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EetEE®)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEE BATN (B)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets EHHEEMKEEEENE

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption AEBEHKFABBEERA12E A E

to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the ENHERTEEEERERNEER

commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. FAEEENERRE - REBINEE

It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value BEEEHEEARERS® HHHEE

assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low- MEEEEEMENHENREHRER

value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or ARAEHERS RN EERAE

another systematic basis over the lease term. e

Right-of-use assets FREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRHEEEMKANEIE :

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; o HHEABEMNVIBRIIESHE

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement o  TERMMBRZAIXNHERNEER
date, less any lease incentives received; K OBEFTES M E R &R

e anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and o  AEEEAMNTATBEEXAR

X

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in o AEEFHEBREBEEE  BER
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the TEEEE EFTE ML 3k 5 AR B & EE IR
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset EREGRIUEEFTRE B AREEFT
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the BEMTRETALA ©
lease.

Annual Report 2021
—EC—FEFER




114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which in Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statements of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o Payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting
the revised lease payments using the unchanged discount rate
and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets. A lease maodification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

o the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis
immediately preceding the modification).
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change is
a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A leasee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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4.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories, less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contract with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, or financial
liabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RBGEUMBHRRNEERE
ERFBER®)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) e@MIARE)

Financial assets TR EE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CRIEEMDEREEE

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

HAT RS MEAEKR
AHE -

376 3124

s SREEMBNAUNMAELRER
B

ENEBRAARKE : &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash e  HAHNKBREIBRNIEERARNES
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the MEARAYNAERAREERS
principal amount outstanding. RS °

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):
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e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e SREENSAHERIIMELNR
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual CREENENNEBEXNAR
cash flows; and gk

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash e HAHNKBREIBREERARNES
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the MEARBYNAERAREERS
principal amount outstanding. HFIE o

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 or initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_—Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

U)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “fair value
gain on financial asset at FVTPL” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
which are in trade nature.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE
4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUGEMBBRRNEERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EgTBE®)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SBMITAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

BIRIBEE B YR EERIESRIERMERT

under HKFRS 9 (Continued) HHSREERREGE)
()  Significant increase in credit risk () 1=ERBRBEZEM
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly REHE B VI HERZEER )

since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

U)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The groupings in regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables, deposit and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF - —F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables (excluding
contract liabilities and other tax payables), lease liabilities and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to customers to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date (i.e. service contracts in which the
Group bills a fixed amount for each month of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in an amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services

As the customers simultaneously receive and consumer the benefit
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs, the
Group recognises the service fee received or receivable from the
customers as its revenue over time based on output method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance competed to date, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Provision of accommodation consultations services

Revenue from provision of accommodation consultations services is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct services.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of
when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the

termination benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring
costs.
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4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax current payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4.

HE_ZT-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (or tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
reductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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4.

BE_ T+ _A=+—RHLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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4.

138

WEBEREEZERERA A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the lease, are
recognised at the date of inception of the lease at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to restore
the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4., RBGEVBRRNEERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EetEE®)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B (&)
() An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) 1ﬁfk/\—|—§|ﬂfﬂﬂm1¢ BNE S B AN
conditions applies: SEARE
()  The entity and the Company are members of the same () %ERBEAQABR %
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and ZKE AR (AIERAR - M
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). BARRRRMERR KL

RARE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEBR> BEREMEE
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(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. iy MEBERHBERA—F=ZFHK
BREDEE -

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEBAEE-FEEMNEG
other entity is an associate of the third entity. B ME—EBRZE

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v EREAASENEAEES
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity MEsERSEEBNER T
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, FBEEE TR S - WASKE
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group. KEEEZTE  RIEED

B {E £ TR B B A e
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4.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will
be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in the reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.

(a)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, including right-
of-use assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the assets belong, including allocation of
corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of CGUs, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates, occupancy rates, average room rates, etc. in the
cash flow projections, could affect the recoverable amounts.
Furthermore, the cash flows projections, discount rates,
occupancy rates, average room rates, etc. are subject to
greater uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty on
how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions
in the Group’s accommodation operations, provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—%

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment subject to
impairment assessment were approximately HK$159,519,000
and HK$45,450,000 (2020: HK$163,180,000 and
HK$36,332,000) respectively. Details of the impairment of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in Notes 21 and 18 respectively.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units (or
a group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount
rates in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or future impairment loss may arise.
Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate
are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in
the current year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19
pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s
accommodation operations due to the travel entry restrictions
were imposed by various cities in PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
is approximately HK$2,064,000 (2020: HK$2,003,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation and impairment
assessment are disclosed in Note 20.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €@mI A
Categories of financial instruments (a) €WMIBAZ9HE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Financial assets: ERMEE -
Financial assets at amortised costs B EN AT ENSREE 26,751 26,198
Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFABEZCREE 2,749 =
Financial liabilities: SRIEME -
Financial liabilities at amortised costs X SR ANEHEN SR A & 238,894 226,102

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial asset
at FVTPL, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances, trade and other payables (excluding other
tax payables and contract liabilities), lease liabilities and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or speculative purposes. There
has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
during the year.

(b)

M EMREE B ERBR

AEENTESRTABREAYF
Bt ARG ERMEE - EHRWK

B e REMEUERIE - R1T
i B REMEMZRE(TE

FHEMEMRBERANEE)
EBENER - SRTEFBERS
MER 3 EE o

HemT BB ENERBETSE
(%%H s RFERE) - EHAR
EREE R - imEz5E
BEVBERBR T X - EHEEEE
&?hM%ﬂ& DARELR K 5 5 2
1B S E A o

e

AEETEHNEH IR B KM
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AEENHSERKEEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

14

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILLFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. €I R
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BERREEBEEZERBKE)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) R (4E)
()  Currency risk ()  HNEERELRR
The Group major operates in Hong Kong and the REEBFEREB LA K
PRC. For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, majority of BEEIE o ?ﬁ$%@ A A B BT
transactions are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), BRRAME  TEXRH TN
which is their functional currency. For the Company /\E?E%Z(U\EMJ )iHER A

and other non-PRC subsidiaries of the Group, business
transactions are principally denominated in HKS$, which
is their functional currencies.

The Group did not have any significant financial assets
or financial liabilities that are denominated in a currency
other than their functional currency as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. Therefore, the management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities. The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances which carry at prevailing market interest. The

HgEER - AR R RA
SE R E A IET B E A A
ME ' FBEXHERNET
AHERREINEEER -

RZEZ—RZZE_FF
+=—A=+—8 " K&EEL
EAMIZE N EEERKRING
BEEGENERTEEENK
BaE- - Al BEERE
I R E R EERER -

i)y  F=EER

AEBHGEREEREN
R ENERR - REET

H R EIZIRIT T 5 A i B
E’]x? BRITHEBKEAZE S

Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing TREMNREK - NEEEE
the potential impact arising from any interest rate FI oK K BT = & A 4E {7 F
movements based on interest rate level and outlook. RSB EEN 5% 2

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk on bank
balance is presented as management consider the
sensitivity on interest rate risk on bank balance is
insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

LAE 32 H 7 2R [

Eﬁﬁéﬁfiiﬁﬁjfiﬁ#ﬁ%ﬂ
KEBRBRENZER N
llttjfﬁiﬁuﬁﬁﬁ’\fﬁﬁmﬁ%
M= @B SUREHI DT o

1Z AR KRB A

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties {*EHH SIEANEBTSEHFERE
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial ’jgﬁk/\z};%@;j{%ﬁﬁkgﬁaﬁ’]
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are % o REBMEARRKOXTE
primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits and other Em AR EWERTN « e K EAth fE U

receivables and bank balances. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. €I RA®E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEEEZRBERE)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

U

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on corporate customers.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
normal credit period to these corporate customers is
30 days. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 64%
(2020: 25%) and 97% (2020: 76%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest debtors
and the five largest debtors respectively. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.

ECL rates of the trade receivables are assessed to be
minimal based on past experience with the debtor,
general economic condition of the industry of the
debtors operate and adjusted for forward-looking
information. Thus, the loss allowance provision for
such balances was insignificant and no loss allowance
provision was recognised in respect of the trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

No credit evaluations are performed to walk-in
customers that are made in cash, credit cards or other
payment platforms. The Group’s trade receivables
in connection with sales settled through payment
platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay are with high
credit rating and no past due history. These assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating issuers
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
and accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised in
respect of the trade receivables.

1= ERR R R E S ()

U

& AR R

SLEWERRM S - EREE
AHEEH AR TP HETT
HEFETEHHRFBAE
B HAR 2 38 7R A0 8% Jo 3R B Y
BN LEEREP 25
EERMEP ZEMAERKE
BERENEBEER - ZFR
AEPH—REEHRI0
Re—Rms  AEELE
AEPEGEMMR o

AEBEEESEFTRR R
AeAEENRANEEAR
A REEAD BIME FEUER R
HEREA%( T T F
25%) ROT%(—E T4 :
76%) c BB EERBEER
K AEBEEEEBELER—
B NNEEEETEERER
ZEEFEH -

JE U BR SR FE BRIz B IS 18 A K
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AN FTTETT 2 — A B AR
AL G AEN - WHLATHE
HERETHE - Atk #
ZEEBITIRBERBEL T
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NUIRE - EARIEMST
FeaNRNBEETFESE
B  c AEBRATNE
HWEINELINFEEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

146

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €I R
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEEEZERBERE)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Deposits and other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL
basis. For the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group assessed the ECL for deposits and
other receivables were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL is considered to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. €I RA®E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEEEZERBERE)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REE TR (E)

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

TRALAEESRBENENE
BB - RIRTIRBAKE A LA
MRz HFAPNREREBEE

REMEHITE

pay.
Repayable Total
Average  on demand K8
effective  orless than Between Over Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2and 5 years 5years  cash flow amount
T REREE KGR
ERA= F-FR WFEELF RENE BeRE RAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL ThL ThL
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-f=1-H
Trade and other payables  FERSBRA R AR 0E - 35,271 - - 35,271 35,271
Borrowings &3 - 22,767 - - 22,767 22,767
Lease liabilties HEBE 7 33,068 75419 126,012 234,499 180,856
91,106 75,419 126,012 292,537 238,894
Repayable Total
Average  on demand e
effective  orless than Between Over  Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2andb5 years 5 years cash flow amount
T REXEE RER
A= d—FR  MEERE AFNE Réne REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT TAT
At 31 December 2020 RZF-TET-A=1-H
Trade and other payables  [ERBRF R M E(FIR - 11,524 - - 11,524 11,524
Borrowings &3 - 37,026 - - 37,026 37,026
Lease liabilties HEAE 4 30,780 66,729 139,371 236,880 177,552
79,330 66,729 139,371 285,430 226,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. TETHR®
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) SMIANAFEE
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at AEBETERMIAEZRAFES
fair value for financial reporting purposes. 2 - MEMBmERR -
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- PEFTATER - NEBEEA
observable data to the extent it is available. For instruments AmE BRI - iFEERT
with significant unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group T BREABENE=-RTAM
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. CAEBZEEE=FAERME
The management works closely with the qualified external @Eﬂiﬁ_fﬂﬁfﬁ o BEGHE AR
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and EEEMEREEE - U ETE
inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the B E M R A SR - B4
findings to the directors of the Company at the end of each EREMEARRARNA A ZEEFER
reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair FAEHER  UBREQATFERINR
value. A o
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial (i) PR = A B LN 2K
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring £E % ;ﬁﬂ]ﬁ/zﬁ TEEE
basis N E
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured AEBEZETEMEERNS
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The WMEMRZAFEGTE - N
following table gives information about how the fair THREHREBENMREEFR
values of these financial assets are determined (in MeMEEZ ANFECEESR
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). B A 2 (B E 15 R &8 A BIE)
ZER o
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 R-ZB-Z—F+=-A=+-—
ANAFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— -t 1 =K st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHER FET FExT
Financial assets at BRATEFABREZ
FVTPL SREE
Call options R e HARE - - 2,749 2,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. €I RA®E)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) €MITAENDFEFTESE)
(Continued)
() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial () FEERESENFEZA

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring EECTHEERTHERE

basis (Continued) NFEE)
Fair value
as at Significant
31 December Fair value Valuation unobservable
2021 hierarchy technique input(s)
R=B=—%
+=A=+—-B A¥HE BEARAEE
AHE EBR fREBRIT WAE
HK$’000
FAT
Call options R0 HRE 2,749 Level 3 Binomial Discount rate
=4 lattice model of 10.7%
ZIER B BRI =
B 10.7%

The fair value of the call options were determined by
the future discounted cash flow of Chengdu LS and
Wuhan LS (as defined in Note 37). The cash flow

REHARE R FETDERKE
hZ2 & REGEMR (& R
A7) HARKBE RIS RME

forecasts were derived from the most recent financial
budget and estimated future cash flows as approved
by the management and using a discount rate of 10.7%
per annum as well as estimate of the exercisability of
the option. If the discount rate increase/decrease by
50 basis points, holding all other variables constant,
would decrease/increase the carrying amount of the
call options by approximately HK$1,213,000 and
HK$1,632,000 respectively.

F o RERETRBTIBEE
BEEHENETFTVERE R
BetRARBEERE - WIKA
FF10.7% K B IR R LA & 4
MR T E M SRR BT
FX o 1 B ER SR 3% b0 JE, 4 50
BEEZ mMEMABEREET
2 ARBHENEEES
B I8 AN#91,213,0007 7T
%21,632,000/8 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

€T E®)

(c) EMIANDTFETERE)

(i) FE=RFEGTEER

Financial
assets

at FVTPL
BAYE
FFABHEZ
SREE
HK$’'000
FET

At 1 January 2021

Change in fair value N EED)

R-—ZE-_—F—H—H

2,749

At 31 December 2021

RZZE_—F+-_A=+—H 2,749

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements were approximate to their fair
values at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7.

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s management, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

Effective during the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
changed its segment disclosure to a single segment, being
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
consultation services segment because the Group changed its
structure of its internal organisation, including changes in its key
management personnel in the Group’s revenue centre and internal
reporting review process. This change in segment reporting
aligns with the manner in which the Group’s CODM currently
receives and uses financial information to allocate resources and
evaluate the performance of reporting segments. This change in
segment presentation does not affect consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income
or consolidated statement of cash flows. The Group retrospectively
revised prior year segment information, to conform to current year
presentation.

No other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group’s result and financial position as a whole. Accordingly,
only entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented.

7.

REDHER

MAREEEE(ANETELERTE (X
BIKEREE |)) 2MIERMAMEE RS
o R AT

HE_ZE-_—S+_-_A=1+—RHIEE
B AEEFSBEBERAEE— DI
BEFEEEERREERZ ARG DI -
AAANEBENSEANPABLEE 215
WEAREBKRFEPLEZEEEAERA
M EFEHRIE - DA REABLIEE b
HAEBEBEERKRE BRIESRE
AU BERUSRERRKTFERE DS
FEMAFR—E - DEBFIHRA BB L
THEBRAEERRR KALERE
AlEERRGEEABREERER - AEEEB
WEFT E—FEDIER - UFELRF
IEL ok

BRARSEERERBRBIBEMRRI A&
RUEEMBIMBEER - Fitt - E275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. KEFEERE)
(Continued)
Geographical information i 2 & R
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is EHEREEREIIFEFL WA E R TY
presented based on the location of customers. All revenue were BREZFMEZ27 - MEFEHNIEKR
derived in the PRC for both years. mIREFRE -
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented AEBZHERDEEER NIREEME
based on the geographical location of the assets. NEZ -

Non-current assets

ERBEE
2021 2020
S5 —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
By geographical location ZitENEE D
Hong Kong B 4,139 8,369
PRC & 202,957 193,250
207,096 201,619
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax WiE ERBEETEE e/ LA REERE
assets. BEE o

- 152 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REDHER#)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FREXEEFHESR
Revenue from customers of corresponding years individually REEEFERBEGEAESBERKTER
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as 10% AR ZF P e KRS T
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Customer A ZFEA =1 5,913
Customer B =FB =1 6,330
Customer C =FC 8,700 9,311
Customer D =FD 10,698 5,273
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 1 B Uiz 2 N FE A 2 &R B 4B M 25 109% LA
revenue of the Group. Eo
8. REVENUE 8. Wz
Revenue represents the aggregate amount of accommodation Wi EEEE - REEARTERE
operations, provision of consultations and accommodation facilities ERRBEINNT

management services as set out as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accommodation operations and FEEERIRHET R
provision of accommodation B2 ARTE
facilities management services 57,831 37,982
Provision of accommodation REEED ARG
consultations services 12,733 12,696
Revenue from contracts with customers EEZ S &KLz 70,564 50,678
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8.

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services

Revenue of accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation facilities management services are recognised
over time using output method when the service are provided. The
Group allows an average credit period is not more than 30 days to
travel agents and corporate customers.

Provision of accommodation consultations services

Revenue of accommodation consultations services is recognised at
a point in time when the related services are rendered.

When the Group receives a deposit before provision of
accommodation consultation services activity, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue is
recognised. The Group typically receives a deposit on acceptance
of contract.

No credit terms are allowed for trade receivables from
accommodation consultation services upon the contractual
obligation is performed.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

&3C )

HEFANNBHER

(E 75 B8 R IR T B S IR
(575 408 I I £ 7 20 0 5 2 IR A o Mk
SETAEE AR 755 B 155 R B 2SR R — ER B RS
NIER - AEE A FIRTHROEES
I E BT RIAB30H -

PR IR

(£ 78 o4 5 AR 75 /O M AR 2 4 48 B R 755 1
RS RAMER

BN 5 B R T T WA S AR A S B AR
ek EREAORBERELSN
BE BEEERIRAS/L  -AKEBE
EEZENRKEIES o

BITAEKNEBR - E75H AR R
BRI AHBREES -

EBEENRAX(BEESHM)

2021 2020

—EB-—% —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Salaries, wages and allowances e~ TEKZERL 18,385 13,230
Pension obligations BIKESEMET 2,277 884
Other benefits EfbEF 679 392
21,341 14,506

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERBETHRABZHH U
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID PEEBEREHFMZES
EMPLOYEES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBRSTHABE ZHH

The emoluments paid and payable to each of the directors RIEEA LR A RAREG (A
and chief executive of the Company for the year, disclosed AMER 1) - FRE R REMNAA T
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies EERERTBABZHEELR
Ordinance (“CQ?”), is as follows: K
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind Bonus contribution Total
e 2R BIREEE
ok BNER 4L e am

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TR FET

For the year ended BE-Z--F

31 December 2021 TZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors: HITES :
Chen Wu R 1,580 - - 18 1,508
Chung Tin Yan BRI 900 - 150 18 1,068
Non-executive directors: FHTES :
Yuan Fuer RER - - - - -
Hu Xinglong i - - - - -

Independent non-executive B3I FHITES :

directors:
Wu Jilin REM 120 - - - 120
Du Hongwei HER 120 - - - 120
Li Zhou ) 120 - - = 120

2,840 - 150 36 3,026
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERBSITHRAEZEHM I

156

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FEEEREFMz2EE#)
EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBESTHRABZEFME)
(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind Bonus contribution Total
e 2ER RINEETE
e EWER bzl H3 pk]
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt T T FEL T T
For the year ended HE-Z-EF
31 December 2020 TZA=t-H
Jl:355
Executive directors: HITES:
Chen Wu FRE. (8 1,208 - - 11 1,239
Chung Tin Yan BRI 900 - - 18 918
Non-executive directors: FHUTES:
Yuan Fuer RER - - - - -
Hu Xinglong TRk - - - - _
Independent non-executive B FHTEES:
directors:
W Jilin REM 120 = = = 120
Du Hongwei AR 120 - - = 120
Li Zhou ESS) 120 - - = 120
2488 - - 29 2517
Notes: PiE -

(a) Chen Wu was appointed as an executive director and the chief

executive officer (“CEQ”) with effect from 20 March 2020.

BE-ZE-TF=-A=-t+HE K
REZEANTES RITHAHK

(T1TBrs@El) -

BRERARRTHRAER - Lt
B TR 8 B AT IR A A7 1 AR
%o WERESEBRBAL

Chen Wu is the CEO of the Company and the emoluments
above also represented the services for his role as CEO. No
separate service contract is sign.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or to any of the directors as
compensation for loss of office.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included two (2020: one) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2020: four) individuals are set out below:

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

10.

BEERBRSTHAE ZHMLL
FEEEREFMz2EE#)

(a)

(b)

ESERESTRARZHM &)

BE_Z-_—FR-ZF-_TF+=
A=+—HLtFE AEETES
STE & 1B B AN A SR DN A 2R 52 [ B Y
RENSE AR R(E -

BE_Z-_—FR-ZF-_FTF+=
A=+—H1tEE  BESRSTR
AB R EERESMFH -

TEREHFAL

FR AEERIERSFALEE
ME(ZEZTF : —F)ESF - i
SR EXEFNZ DT R - Eff
ZH(ZETF  [OFH) ALHB
SEINMAT -

2021 2020

== —F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TEKRERL 1,800 2,570
Pension obligations RIk&EE 36 72
1,836 2,642
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERBBHTRAS ZFHH I
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID REEBRSHFHZ2EE #)
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEBRSHFALE)
The number of the highest paid individuals who are not Bl FATEE IR A A E
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the ENmREHMATHAZSLT

following band is as follows:

Number of employees

EEA™

2021 2020
—E- & —TE-FF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 3 4
No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals MEFERNERAAZ RS AL
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SAHMEM B2 ERR S I AZIA

compensation for loss of office during both years. NEER 2 BN 1ERRER A (E -
No bonus was paid or receivable by five highest paid KEERNEEFANEERIBER
employees after considering the Group's operational and Big BEMAEE=FHEE X
financial performance during the year (2020: nil). NREREXNOHEAL(ZT T

Ffm)
11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 11. H&ERX

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Legal and professional fee EREREXER 2,497 3,171
Building management fee EFERE 2,841 1,906
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 355 B 1,140 1,140
Selling and advertising expenses HERESER 1,659 1,389
Accommodation operating costs EBEEZAAR 2,639 1,748
Others Hh 1,212 1,979
11,988 11,333

- 158 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

12. OTHER INCOME 12. HAlg A
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA 29 34
Food and beverage and other hotel income B4 % 815 K H i F J5 Ug A 444 20
Reversal of provision for asset retirement HREE B E1E R A E R E - 103
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-191EREM SRR - 1,219
Government grants (Note) B HE B (B ) 475 1,782
Gain on lease modification HE B = 403 _
Others HAth 188 178
1,539 3,336
Note: Amount of approximately HK$475,000 (2020: HK$1,080,000) were MiaE : 49475,0007 T ( —E = F 4 1,080,000
relating to exemption of value-added-tax in the PRC in relation to the BTN ERHENIBEREEENH
accommodation operation business. FIZEFHREFE -
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these I (] Bl s E BT B B 2 A BT
government grants. R HHAFEZIER ©
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised BHE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HItHF
approximately HK$432,000 relates to Employment Support Scheme B ANEBERL432,00008 TE BT
provides by the Hong Kong Government. B BUTIRERBERTE -
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BE RN
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Finance cost on provision for asset retirement R E& & EE 18 R BRI B B AR 22 23
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 8,083 5,482
8,105 5,505
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRSHAX

2021 2020
s —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FH&TT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BNEARHIE — RS ZEFR1S
Provision for the year FIERME 3,156 3,197
Deferred tax IRERIR 710 (592)
3,866 2,605

160

WEBEREEZERERA A

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

AEERHAEREREBRABEEHE
BABUR

RZEBE—N\F=ZRA=+—18 " &BLZE
fﬂiﬂ—g T FBHUERT) (BT IE
BIER(TEZR]) - | AFSTRARS
BERRZZE-N\EFE=ZA=Z+N\BEEKX
BEE WRXBTE - REFSHM
B GEREEERNE2EES TR
i 128.25% < FAEBF - BiB2E &S
T2 M A3 16.5% & Bl REF o &
A TS H R AR ) B A B 05 T o 4 A
16.5% ) &l — T KT

RABESRE - BHEH S AR A
FRMEEBRSAMIERERTESKH
%> MEFENDTEFNBGSRiRhTE
RBEA6.5% 2 FHRA1HE -

REBEFEBBEEEMEHA(IBEMAE
BOED REEMEBEOAB RG] - FE
MBARNMIEFEAN RIS H25%




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. FRSHiBAR 2

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to (loss) FHNBHRASEGEEERTRGRH

profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as Al (B ) &M RAT

follows:

2021 2020
:g:_qi —_— 5 —% ZE'E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss) profit before tax BB AT (E518 ) i A (150) 144

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable ZEAR SR IERNE MR RE

to profits or loss in the respective countries RYFRIE 524 760
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ AT 14 B % YRR & 2 & 1,891 2,036
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBENONBEEE 1,530 261
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not 2 AR R IAE BT E

previously recognised e (1,690) (1,815)
Tax losses previously recognised and reversed 2 BIRERRIL B~ B #5518 456 412
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI AR B 75 2 22 (687) (72)
Unrecognised temporary difference RERERMERE 1,842 1,023
Income tax expense PRISHFI X 3,866 2,605

Annual Report 2021
Yo zan 1611



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 15. FREHE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): FARETEHBR (BT A) T3 HE E5
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Auditors’ remuneration for AT EBRZEEN S
— audit services — B R 900 900
— non-audit services —JEEETARTE 240 240
1,140 1,140
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) b B8 (e ) 588 49 )
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  #is5#% - BiE & &4 14 -
16. DIVIDEND 16. lRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the WEEEA - AN B E R I H R R
Company for both years. SRS ©
17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. BRREF|
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BEREXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to AABBEBEAREERELRER
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year MM EDERARAHES
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately A F AR T L 4977,000
HK$4,977,000 (2020: HK$2,063,000) and the weighted B (ZZ ZFF : 2,063,000
average number of ordinary shares is 448,363,708 (2020: BIL) RRAFEEBITESE
448,363,708) in issue during the year. f& 0 # £ 5 21 448,363,708 %

ZTE T4 : 448,363,7080%) ©

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEERF
No diluted earnings per share for both years were presented BARMESFEMEEETERER
as there were no potential shares in issue for both years. - B 2 7 MR F 2 8 I
SEEF) -

- 162 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BEKRRE
Leasehold Furniture Office  Construction
improvements  and fixtures equipment in progress Total
HENEEE  BAREE  BAZRE ERIE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TAT AT THT TAT
Cost A&
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=ZF-A—H 21,196 6,346 3,390 - 30,932
Additions AE 295 97 207 25,710 26,309
Disposals L& - = @ = )
Exchange realignment [E 5 R 616 401 219 1,462 2,698
At 31 December 2020 and RIBZEF+-A=1t-HR
at 1 January 2021 —Z-—%-f-H 22,107 6,844 3,812 21,172 59,935
Additions AE 13,226 2,454 657 - 16,337
Write-off HsH (126) - - - (126)
Transfer gz 20,434 7,569 - (27,993) -
Exchange realignment R 298 199 12 821 1,430
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+ZA=+-H 55,939 17,056 4,581 - 77,576
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF-HA—H 13,833 4,266 1,695 - 19,794
Provided for the year FREHR 2,025 541 503 = 3,069
Disposals & - - @ - ()
Exchange realignment A AE 310 29 138 - 744
At 31 December 2020 and RIZZEF+A=t-HR
at 1 January 2021 —F-—%-f-A 16,168 5,103 2,332 - 23,603
Provided for the year ENaHER 5,627 1,991 642 - 8,160
Write-off iz (112) - = = (112)
Exchange realignment B AR 218 176 81 - 475
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=+-H 21,801 7,210 3,055 - 32,126
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2021 R-E--5+-A=+-H 34,138 9,786 1,526 - 45,450
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+-R=1-H 5,939 1,741 1,480 21,172 36,332
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - BER®ZE#)

164

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements  shorter of the unexpired term of lease

and 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Impairment assessment

The Group carried out impairment assessments of the recoverable
amount of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as a result of the deterioration
of performance of branches. These assets are used in the Group’s
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management segment.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of their
value-in-use using discounted cash flow method. The cash flow
forecasts were derived from the most recent financial budgets
and estimated future cash flows covering the remaining terms as
approved by the management and the average pre-tax discount
rate was approximately of 17.2% (2020: 15.1%). Other key
assumptions included occupancy rates, average room rates, etc.
which are determined based on the Group’s past performance and
management expectations for the market developments.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

B TIARS - L% - BB RRE
HB K ARG RBREERAERE
BERATERGFENE -
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RERKE 56
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HRDEXEEE  AEENR _T——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FAMNRIE - RERHMER
RECEIVABLES 1|
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Prepayments and deposit paid EARERE RS
Prepayments SELNEE 1,221 1,015
Deposits ®Be
Rental deposits HEZe 4,611 5,442
Other receivables (note) H A pE U FRIE (B RE) 3,058 239
Total prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - BREREMGEWRFUE
other receivables g 8,890 6,696
Note: As at 31 December 2021, the amount included refundable earmest money M R —F+=A=+—H ' %8

e

of approximately HK$979,000 paid to &I T HESRE X H R A A
(Shenzhen Zhaohua Exhibition Industrial Limited®) (*Shenzhen Zhaohua”)
for a possible lease of premises under development in Shenzhen, the
PRC. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement

BREBRPEFRIDERE-—RERE
RFMESINTFRITRESEEESR
ARI(RIBEDWARERE L
979,000 7T - E—FHBERENREAA

dated 24 December 2021. APAE-_—F+-A=Z+WAKN
N

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEFRENDINS -
2021 2020
s —EFF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FiBT
Non-current EREN 4,630 2,824
Current VL) 4,260 3,872
8,890 6,696

*

For identification purposes only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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20. GOODWILL 20. BHE

HK$’000
FAT

Cost R
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—H—H 1,879
Exchange realignment [ K 124
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_ZTF+-_/f=+—HE_ZT-—F—HF—H 2,003
Exchange realignment PE 7 HE 61
At 31 December 2021 R-—ZE-_—5+=-A=+—H 2,064

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to BN A IE R 302 iR %2 IR 75 A BR A A) (Huizhou Hazens East Resort
Travel Services Limited) (“Huizhou Hazens”), which engaged in
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services in PRC.

BRERARNE  HEEOEEEMA
ERBEKREREERRA([EME
E]) ZRARFPEEEREZSERRE
HEBEREEEIR

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Huizhou Hazens BINEIE 2,064 2,003

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (including allocation of corporate assets)
that generate cash flows together with the related goodwill are
also included in the CGU of Huizhou Hazens for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of Huizhou Hazens has been determined
by a value-in-use calculation. The Group performed impairment
assessment on the CGU of Huizhou Hazens based on the cash
flow forecast derived from the most recent financial budgets and
estimated future cash flows covering the remaining lease term as
approved by the management and using a pre-tax discount rate of
22.6% (2020: 15.1%) per annum. Other key assumptions included
occupancy rates, average room rates, etc. which are determined
based on the branch’s past performance and management
expectations for the market developments. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the CGU to exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. ERAEEE
Land and Motor Office
buildings vehicles equipment Total
TR
EZEY RE BAERE FoEG)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=-_ZF—HF—H 39,509 382 = 39,891
Additions (note e) NE (fiiste) 129,648 = 77 129,725
Depreciation charge TEMX (17,669) (77) 6) (17,752)
Exchange realignment b H % 11,296 20 = 11,316
At 31 December 2020 and ~ RZZE=T4F
at 1 January 2021 +ZA=1+—HXK
—T-—4%—H—H 162,784 325 71 163,180
Additions (note f) NE (FRED) 15,413 - - 15,413
Depreciation charge ERX (21,854) (83) (15) (21,952)
Disposals HE (1,758) - = (1,758)
Exchange realignment i H A 4,627 9 - 4,636
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—F
+=A=+—H 159,212 251 56 159,519
Notes: BfaE -
(@)  For both years, the Group leases land and buildings, a motor vehicle @ PWMEFE AEEpgpAEZERETH

and office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed periods of 2 to 15 years (2020: 2 to 15 years), 5.5 years
(2020: 5.5 years) and 5 years (2020: 5 years) respectively, but may
have extension and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

KigF RERBRARE  HELSHD
AIREEHR2E16F (B -FF : 2
ZE15%F) - 55F(ZE_FF : 554F)
BEFE(ZZT=ZF : 54 )5 v A
e AR KR IERIZRE - A ERE
W MEBEE - BRETRIERRIE
% o BRI G EBEHRNE
BN AEEREAAHEETETEHN
ATAITHOEARR - sz E it W E M T
R%HEREEETSBEETIEEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

The following amounts are related to leases with a related company
(Mr. Yuan has control over the related company):

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. FREEE®)

MaE - (%)

(0)

AT & 8RR A ) (REEESZH
BABMEEER

2021 2020

:g:_$ —ZE= fﬁ

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Right-of-use assets EREEE 7,131 8,075
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ FAEEETERS 1,171 1,340
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,060 9,839
Lease interests HERN L 460 475
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R LB 1,520 1,349

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff quarters.
As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of leases for which short-term lease expense
was recognised during the current year. The Group had amount of
approximately HK$687,000 and HK$269,000 expenses relating to
short-term leases for 2021 and 2020 respectively.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of land and
buildings provided rent concessions to the Group through rent
reductions for 1 month.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess
whether the changes constitute lease modifications. The effects
on changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the
lessors for the relevant leases of approximately HK$1,219,000 were
recognised as other income.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$129,648,000 under land and
buildings which mainly represents two leased-and-operate branches
under construction situated in Chengdu and Wuhan for a period of
12 years and 15 years respectively. The Group applied incremental
borrowing rate of approximately 4.9% for both leases. Further details
were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$15,413,000 under land
and building which mainly represented a leased-and-operate branch
in Nanshan, Shenzhen. The lease was renewed for a period of 2
years and the Group applied incremental rate of approximately
4.75% to the lease. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November 2021.

Details of impairment assessment were disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 22, RIEFIBEE

TXHMIIRAEE BB F R R E
ERIEBREE RATHED

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Right-of-use  Accelerated
assets/lease tax
liabilities  depreciation Tax loss Total
EREEE
HEEE MERBERE BEEE k]
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT FHL FHL FHL
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_EF—H—H 558 549 830 1,937
Charged (credited) to e GIA)EE

profit or loss (Note 14) (BizE14) 1,106 (102) 412) 592
Exchange realignment b 5 AR 99 31 31 161
At 31 December 2020 and —T-TF

at 1 January 2021 +fﬂ_+ B &

—Z-—%—HF—H 1,763 478 449 2,690
Credited to profit or loss T ABE=(fEE14)

(Note 14) (119) (135) (456) (710)
Exchange realignment Rz 52 12 7 71
At 31 December 2021 NZTE—_—%F

+=-A=+—H 1,696 355 - 2,051
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards fisl 75 8 154 75 1| & ] B2 3 3 K 4 R O FE AR
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit Tt M A 2R E'JAFJEF)? Gul 2 TR

through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2021, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$6,306,000 (2020: HK$6,084,000) in respect
of losses amounting to approximately HK$28,982,000 (2020:
HK$28,648,000) that can be carried forward against taxable
income. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$17,933,000 (2020: HK$13,844,000) that will expire within 5
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$38,219,000 (2020: HK$18,479,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

EEWL,JEL%RIE’%F E/\—?_*fﬁ“"_
B=+—8 ' R"REBW 5l fELEE A
B 85 FE SR T UL 2 E5 18 #9.28,982,000/%
TT(ZEZZF : 28,648,000 70 ) #ER
TR TE & EE#96,306,0008 0( — T =%
F : 6,084,000/87T) ° RIERFIEEIEE
%Hﬂ%ﬁﬁm F|HA2 17,933,000/ 7T (=
T4 13,844,000/8 ) 2 EiE o H
fth R TE & 1B T FE R R R) B2 4582 o

RB|EHR  AKEATHRERE
% /538,219,000 L (Z T =T F
18,479,000 7T ) ~ B T KAl ge 15
FRVEM S AT N A M Z S R SR B 05
A - B I R AR A RN E R M
HIEAREEF S EE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

22.

23.

24,

HE_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is
approximately HK$43,399,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$31,028,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

22.

REMRIBEE®)

RBEBMR RBEE_FT_—F+-A
=St HLEFERBAMMNERRRDIK
BNAERECHRBENERFEES
HA /43,399,000 T (ZFE_FF -
31,028,000/ 7T) ° B S B A] LAZ ]
TRUEEZERBOOKHE - BZEERA
SR~ gRm - MIWAR b=
RERAE -

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL 23. BAFEFABRGZZERMEE
2021 2020
s —TE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Call options for obtaining non-controlling BS IR R R Y RS HAE
interests 2,749 -

The Group hold call options to obtain the non-controlling interests
of Chengdu LS and Wuhan LS (as defined in Note 37). Further
details were disclosed in Note 37.

These call options were not traded in an active market and
the respective fair values were determined by using valuation
technique. Details of the fair value measurements were disclosed in
Note 6(c).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s revenue transactions from
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services are made via credit cards, cash
or other payment platforms such as Alipay and Wechat Pay.
Accommodation rooms are rented to corporate customers with
an appropriate credit history on credit terms of 30 days. No credit
terms are allowed for trade receivables from accommodation
consultation services. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

24,

AEEFEMEREA R REENER
(& EKEES7) FEBRESNRED
18 o E— TR WERNEEST

ZERBMRYLENERMEXHAE
BAFERAGERMNERE - AFER
BHRFBRERHEES() °

FE U B R

AEENEELERREHREBREER
RBKRZFEEUNERR  Beax
NEERBESEMXNFEREE - A&
BoEEREERELENEREPIEN
StHRNEBEEFHEEEY - EEH
ARBNEZERX I AFEREER
R ARBESREREFETPREREZ
FEWTKIR - E=ETE HEMEIERE o

2021 2020

s —T-FF

HK$'000 HK$’000

T FETT

Trade receivables JFEUBR R 4,786 548

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. FEWEBRRR (&)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance EW R R E R S IR B R B MR
for expected credit loss, based on invoice date as of the end of A (MKRTEREESERE T -
reporting period, is as follows:

2021 2020

:g: - ﬂE — 5 —% $

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

F#ET FAT

0-30 days 0ZE30Kk 1,605 168
31-60 days 31ZE60K 41 105
61-90 days 61ZE90K 3,103 113
91-120 days 91E120K 35 138
Over 120 days 120 KA E 2 24
4,786 548

The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the past due date:

TXHIIRZEEE B #2589 8 YR
(HIBRE EEREE) WARE DT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$’000

F#ET FiBT

Neither past due nor impaired R EASORE 1,605 168
1-30 days past due 1230H A Hf 41 105
31-60 days past due 31E60H#HA 3,103 113
61-90 days past due 61ZE90H #HA 35 138
Over 90 days past due 90H LA 38 Hf 2 24
4,786 548

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade R-_E-_—F+=-_A=+—H K&

receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$3,181,000 (2020: HK$380,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
approximately HK$37,000 (2020: HK$162,000) has been past due

60 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in

Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMEURERERABERELAY
3,181,000/ ;L (= ZZ 4 : 380,000/%
TOORIRE B HIE B E R EURBR X » FE8
HRgE &R 4937,00008 T ( — T —T4F -
162,000/ T) B8 HA60 A sk LA £ ©

FEWRFOR B A N BE N R A M5

HKRHES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

25. INVENTORIES 25. &

2021 2020
s —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Consumables N=b = 379 110

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EERF R HMESFIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables FETBRIR 1,650 108
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R EAthfE N FRIE 34,325 12,130
35,975 12,238

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as JEBRIREN B Z HHIRBRER DT T ¢

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—f T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
0-30 days 0Z30X 1,628 104
31-60 days 31ZE60K 21 3
61-90 days 61ZE90K 1 1
1,650 108

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. ENRAREENRIE S

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows: FERTIE B R E b FERT RIB A H AT #5120

T
2021 2020
—E-—% T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

Accruals PESTIER

Accrued staff costs FERTB IR 1,123 1,091

Accrued audit and professional fee BB REEE 1,903 1,600

3,026 2,691

Other payables Hit A RRIE

Other tax payables Efth IR 404 374

Deposits Be 86 355

Contract liabilities (note (i) & HaEPRED) 300 340

Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE1F 428 A e i kT8 (PR 3 Gi))

(note (i) 25,573 7,276

Others Hth 4,936 1,094

31,299 9,439

Total accruals and other payables FESTIEE R HA (S R 4858 34,325 12,130

Notes: FfaE -

)  The Group would collect deposits for corporate customers. ) AEEBHCERFPKEUZS - E2H
Whenever the progress towards complete satisfaction or the relevant ERSEITHERRAOETNEEESR
performance obligation is passed, such contract liabilities would B BEANAGEEWEUERER - m
be derecognised and the respective amount would be recognised EHRcERERARE - BHAEBER
as revenue. The balance of contract liabilities is expected to be TR T E B E R AWA o

recognised as revenue in next financial year.

(i)  As at 31 December 2021, the amount represents amounts due i) MZZTZ—F+-A=1+—8H &ZXE
to non-controlling interests of approximately HK$12,678,000 and EEMKEEEEERRZAERH
HK$12,895,000 (2020: HK$4,017,000 and HK$3,259,000) due to (FE 2 R M5E37) B AT EIE IR 25 3K
the Chengdu Partner and the Wuhan Partner (as defined in Note 37) 18 5 Bl 4912,678,0007% 7T &% 12,895,000
respectively. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable BIL(ZZEZZF : 4,017,00078 T &
on demand. 3,259,000/ 70) ° B AEER -

BRERERKEE -
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased accommodation
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy
agreements in 11 years (2020: 12 years). Provision is therefore
made for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs
to be incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement are as

27. REEEERRE

RIBEETFRITNEERRGK  £AF
//\E’\ifﬁf'ﬁfﬂi*jﬁ;’: FAM(+—F)(=F
TE A F)EREBEARERER

%&@Eﬁ

SEBEYWE - BB B

E A B IR SR B AN A B B AT ) i 5 E 1T 38
o MEEEERBENESNOT

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 444 869
Provision utilised BB AEE = 377)
Reversal of provision for asset retirement REEE EE R ERER - (103)

Finance cost on provision for asset HREEEERBHNORERAN
retirement (Note 13) (MI7E13) 22 23
Exchange realignment M 5, 8 B 14 32
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~ 480 444
Less: non-current portion W SERENER S (480) (444)

Current portion

iPEELS

ok

D
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEAE
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
HEAR HENRRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B —"IT-_THF B "ZE_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHET FET FAETT
Within one year —FR 33,068 30,780 25,025 30,158
In the second to fith years, & -RERE
inclusive (BIEEEMTF) 75,419 66,729 50,260 57,927
After five years FF1E 126,012 139,371 105,571 89,467
234,499 236,880 180,856 177,552
Less: Future finance charges i : <KL& & F (53,643) (69,328)
Present value of lease liabilities & & FIRE 180,856 177,552
Less: Amount due for A T @A REHER
settlement within B8 2 50R
12 months (shown (BRI ED
under current liabilities) BET) (25,025) (30,158)

Amount due for settlement  + 18 A& RIEEE

after 12 months S| 155,831 147,394

Notes: FifsE

(@) At 31 December 2021, the incremental borrowing rates ranged (@) Eff—\,f FH+ZA=+—08 ' E2E
from 4.2% to 9% (2020: 4.2% to 9%). Interest rates are fixed at the KFAENFT4.2%ZE 9% :27@&
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate 4 2%%E9%) ° FMEREHH H&ﬁfgm ¥IN
risk. £ 18 R i A X FE R = E

(b) Lease liabilities of approximately HK$9,060,000 (2020: ) RZFE=Z—F+=-A=+—H #HE&
HK$9,839,000) are related to leases with a related party as at 31 B {E#9,060,0008 L ( Z T =5 F :
December 2021. 9,839,0007%8 7T ) BHRARE H FHER M -

(©)  Lease liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB. 0 HMHEEBERIHFDHAARKIE-
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. BORROWINGS 29. fEK
2021 2020
s —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Borrowings from the Controlling BRI R A fE K
Shareholder 22,767 37,026
The borrowings are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable BRAEER - R RIREREREE
on demand
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE X
HK$’'000
FAT
Authorised: VERE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SRAECIEBL(ZE_ZF :
(2020: HK$0.01) each 0.0187L) &R
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZE=ZTF—H—1 -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-FTF+-_A=+—8"
I il =04
B —F+=ZRA=+—H 780,000,000 7,800
Issued and fully paid: E%”&%E'
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZEZZTF—H—H "
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-FF+A=+—8H"
- —F—-H—-RAkK
B —F+=-RA=+—H 448,363,708 4,484

- 176 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium and other reserves).

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods were as

30. A& (#&)

AEEEAEENERRREAKERE

FELE BB LERNBBIL RS
TRR&EA R -

AEBIZLPRERBRERNEE - AE
BERREEAGRE YRBKELRR R
HRAEERBRFRENEEMAR - RT
MR EANGER  AREAEEH
BEREXAN - BITHERG - DEBRG
BMAFE - BRRAEHIHEEEN
BB

AEBERBEBEREALXKEESR
Ko ZLLRRBEFERNELRST
BEFENEERERABERESIESSE
BYEtE - EAm2HER(BRA - Kk
03 8 S EA A 1 ) ALK

RBEMRNEERBLENT -

follows:
2021 2020
—E- —TE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FBT
Debt (note) &IA (FsE) 229,196 221,854
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY (14,296) (19,969
Net debt BIE 5 214,900 201,885
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A BI#EAE A JE(LHEZS 12,323 7,073
Net debt to equity ratio IR FRR B R 2 L 1,744% 2,854%

Note: Debt includes borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts due to
non-controlling interests included in trade and other payables.

Mzt - EEBFEER  HEAE R AR
TR E At [ A< R IA Y FE A5 SRR AR R 2 K
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31. AQ AR ER

THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RMB AR ZIRE 4,730 4,730
Rental deposits HEZE 1,416 1,416
Prepayments SELN B 63 104
6,209 6,250
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other deposits FENFIERE MRS 413 437
Rental deposits HEZe - 1,394
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B R 70 196
483 2,027
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATRY B 2 B IE 19,408 13,320
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E A FRIE 1,507 1,541
Borrowings & 22,767 22,767
43,682 37,628
Net current liabilities FhREAE (43,199) (35,601)
Net liabilities 8EFE (36,990) (29,351)
Equity R
Share capital 1N 4,484 4,484
Reserves i (41,474) (33,835)
Capital deficiency BEARE M (36,990) (29,351)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 R-ZF__F=AtARESFSHER
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BETBTHUTEERERESE
Yuan Fuer Chung Tin Yan
RER EXAT
Director Director
EE EFE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
(@) The Group (@) A*&KHE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBRENSBLER RIS
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit B R EALEE WA R RERE
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated HEERPITR o

statement of changes in equity.
(b) The Company (b) ZAAF]

Share Shareholder’'s Accumulated

premium contributions losses Total
R E REEE RitER ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF—H—H 261,579 3,550 (291,280) (26,151)
Total comprehensive loss FALHEELRE
for the year - - (7,684) (7,684)
At 31 December 2020and ~ RZT=ZTF
at 1 January 2021 TZA=+—RHK
—T-—%—H—H 261,579 3,550 (298,964) (33,835)
Total comprehensive loss FAEEEGERRE
for the year - - (7,639) (7,639)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-&
+=ZHA=1+—H 261,579 3,550 (306,603) (41,474)
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. IARAE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities for both HE_T-—FR-_ZFT=-TF+=H8
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+—HIEMEFE  AEEIWEEMA
BARIAEE -
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EXREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition 2 5] 4B R R4RA BIEHRE
of property, plant and equipment BERBEEDE

contracted for but not provided in the BEMEEERRS

consolidated financial statements - 12,002

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. E KB A XS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances BRéRE B RETEM AR TR BT
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the RPREEHIN  REBRFEANFIATE
Group had the following transactions with its related parties during 5 o
the year.
(a) Key management compensation (a) FEEEAESHE
2021 2020
—B=-—-F —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Salaries, wages and allowance e TERZM 2,630 900
Pension obligations BRESEF 36 18
2,666 918

- 180 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. EXE#BARZ (&)

(Continued)
(b) The Group had the following significant (b) AEERFERELTEKEIH
transactions with the related party during AR5
the year:
2021 2020
—E-— ZECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET FAT
Provision of accommodation A 7 IR ETE AR
consultations services from
related parties (i) 8,654 8,800
Accommodation operations from R B BEE T (T8 &8
related parties (i) 45 511
Rental expenses charged by —Z@H RN EER
a related party (i) 1,520 1,349
Notes: BisE -
0] Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties. i) RO AR AR T OB o
(i) A related party, controlled by Mr. Yuan, provides an office for iy —RBEWHF(AREEER)RF
certain subsidiaries free of charge during the year. NERERAETREMBARR
B -
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

S

——F+ZA=t+—HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. EXBE#BARZ (&)

(Continued)
(c) The Group had the following balances with the (c) *EERFREBRBLIEUT
related party during the year: o
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt FE T FAET
Other payables to related parties oA e~ RS (i) - 281
Note: PisE
() Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties. The balances () REEBEBHBH S ETEGRE -
arose from the utilities and other operating expenses paid AEERPR B FE R AN B[R] B B 7
on behalf of the Group by the related parties, for which they BT RERNEEZMNHR
should be reimbursed by the Group. SR EMEESL L -
(d) As 31 December 2021, the Controlling Shareholder had made (d R=Z=_—F+=—A=+—H &

available credit facilities up to the amount of HK$550,000,000
(2020: HK$350,000,000) to the Group on normal commercial
terms or better to the Group. The borrowings drawn under
the Controlling Shareholder’s credit facility shall be repayable
on the date as set out in the individual borrowing agreements
and are interest-free and unsecured. The Group may request
for drawdown on HK$350,000,000 and HK$200,000,000
credit facilities at any time prior on or to 7 August 2022 and
27 August 2023 respectively. As at 31 December 2021,
credit facility of amount of approximately HK$527,233,000
(2020: HK$312,974,000) is available for use.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEBEREEZERERA A

AR AR R — MR P F R E B FR
$$@mﬂﬂﬁ$%@h{iﬁm
%550,000,0008 L (ZE=FF :
350,000,000/ 7T ) K{ZE M & E
& - REBZERRFEEEEE MR
MIERIR S Bk WEE] LB A
BRI AR B MERIN - AT Hh
AEESRRAZE-_—_FEN\A+H
F—E-_=FNA-++H=ZAH
& B 2 S 52 B 350,000,000 78 7T &
200,000,000 THIEE/ME - 1
—E_—F+-A=1+—H " ®&%
49527,233,000/8 TT( ZE &4 :
312,974,000 L) M{EERMEREE
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36. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

36.

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

METDELENAEED

TRAZHINAEERETHELNE
R BRASRIFRCES - BE

ABELNAEREREARECEEAX
AXRBREREFERBAREEGZSR

EREXFARELTHELNRESRE

financing activities. HB5 ©
Total
Amounts liabilities
due to from
non-controlling Lease financing
interests liabilities  Borrowings activities
FEA3 FE1E IR EEMN
BRTE HEEE S EEeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT TET THT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—A—H - 44,882 15,000 59,882
Change in cash flows Henegy 6,884 (12,789) 21,260 15,355
Non-cash changes FReEH
— Interest charged —MBZH = 5,482 = 5,482
- Additions of lease liabilities —HEAEEM - 129,725 - 129,725
- COVID-19-related rent concession ~ —COVID-1918EEFHEE & = (1,219) = (1,219)
— Exchange realignments —[EH A% 392 11,471 766 12,629
At 31 December 2020 and RZTZTHF
at 1 January 2021 +-A=+—-HBk
RZZE=——F—H—H 7,276 177,552 37,026 221,854
Change in cash flows Rene® 17,873 (28,202 (14,480) (19,809)
Non-cash changes FRe#
— Interest charged —FIEXH - 8,083 - 8,083
— Additions of lease liabilities —HEBEEM - 15,413 = 15,413
- Lease modification —THEEY - (2,161) = (2,161)
- Exchange realignments —ER AR 424 5,171 221 5,816
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+=A=+-H 25,573 180,856 22,767 229,196
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. IB A EFHE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as R—_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H KEQ
follows: RIZFIBAT
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid/ Percentage
registration and Legal fom of registered of ownership  Principal
Company name operation corporate existence capital interest  activities
EmAL/ BEAR BEA
NRER EMREERY ARFENEEKA B/ EfER BEEDL TEXE
Huizhou Hazens East Resort The PRC Private limited liability RMB1,000,000 1009% (indirect) ~ Accommodation operations and
Travel Services Limited company provision of accommodation facilities
management services
Blla ERD RS e BARRAH AR¥1,000,00070 100%(f#%) EREERREBESRIEEERE
BRAR
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists The PRC Private limited liability HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Co., Ltd.* company provision of accommodation facilities
management services
e N i BABRAR  80000BT  100%(FE) EREERERRSWEEERE
Shenzhen Modem Tourists The PRC Private limited liability HK$1,000,000 100% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Co., Ltd.* company provision of accommodation facilities
management services
MIBEEREREROT  RE MABRGA 1000000EL  100%(HE) EREEREAFEEREEIRG
Legend Strategy Corporate The PRC Private limited liability HK$5,000,000 1009% (indirect) ~ Provision of accommodation
Management (Shenzhen) company consultations services
Co., Ltd.*
WRCRERRIDRRAT  RE RARBAR  S0000BT  100%(EE) RAEERSRE
@Grand China Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong Private limited liability HK$1 100% (indirect) ~ Cost centre
company ordinary share
hEERARAA Bl BABRAA 1A 100% (@) BKASL
___________________________________________________________________ L
Net Media Finance Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong Private limited liability HK$20,000,000 100% (indirect) ~ Provision of accommodation
Limited company ordinary shares consultations services
BEBRMKEEERAR &k BABRAR 20,000,000 7 100%(f#) REEREZARS
TR

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. B ARFHBE®
(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as RZE-_—F+-A=+—H0 WBA
follows: (Continued) RAIZFBIT : (&)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid/ Percentage
registration and Legal fom of registered of ownership  Principal
Company name operation corporate existence capital interest  activities
HMRL/ ERTR BEA
NGES aMRCERYE AREENEERS BHR/HMER EREA TEER
Chengdu Legend Strategy The PRC Private limited liability RMB500,000 51% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Hotel Management Company company provision of accommodation facilities
Limited" (“Chengdu LS") (note) management services
RBNEBEERERAR 8 RABRAR ARE500,0007T 51%(HK) EREERREBRSREEERE
e
Wuhan Legend Strategy The PRC Private limited liability RMB500,000 51% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Hotel Management Company company provision of accommodation facilties
Limited” (‘Wuhan LS”) (note) management services
HENABEEEBRAR e RAERAH ARE500,0007 51%(f%) (R2EREMEEEEERY
(&EmA ) (FsE)
* Wholly-owned Foreign Enterprise * INEBERE
# Partially-owned Foreign Enterprise f INEEERE
Note: Chengdu LS and Wuhan LS are considered as subsidiaries of the BT - N E N 2 R RBUEM AR AAREER
Group because the Group has held 51% for both ownership and MEBAR - REANEEBZMALA
voting rights since the date of incorporation. The Group also have the RS EHEA RIS EENS1%ER -
right to appoint three out of five directors of the board of directors of REE B EEERE N 2 & RIEN
Chengdu LS and Wuhan LS. The Group has a sufficient dominant RESSTRESTHN -RES - A&
voting interests to direct the relevant activities of Chengdu LS and EHE AN EEBIREER - AEEK
Wuhan LS and therefore has controlled over Chengdu LS and Wuhan #H 2R REVEN) R R ERES) - Bt
LS. AR N 2 % REEME R HIE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERINEAREEREEAEEELE
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the LEEBEEXENARRMBAR -
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries KABEERE  GRHEEMHEAR
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in BIFEE - EERERBRRILE °

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end EN B QRN AT ERBEITEMER
of the year. FH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZF-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. B RFE®)
(Continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of TRIRAEE I FERIEERERT
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: 2 ENMBARFIE
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests Total comprehensive
incorporation and voting rights loss allocated Accumulated loss on
and principal held by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
BlAEE FERER T AREFERERN
WEARER RETEXWY FERRRRREELA SHEEREE FERERRTER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--& “I-FF —E--% “E-TF ZB--F S 423
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TAR ThL TERL THT TET THT
Chengdu LS The PRC 49% 49% (4,925) (2,784) (7,709) (2,784)
N2 % i
Wuhan LS The PRC 49% 49% (4,569) (1,949) (6,518) (1,949)
HEMA il
Individual immaterial subsidiaries (68) (286)

with non-controlling interests

RAFERESNEAFER

HEBAR
(14,295) 5,019
Information on non-wholly-owned subsidiaries with ERBEEEARFERERNIEDEN
material non-controlling interests BARER
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s RSB EREE A IERESNSM
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out BRAZHBERBMEHINMT o AT
below. The summarised financial information below represents VAR Z 20 EB AL HAT < 58

amount before intra-group elimination.

- 186 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILtEFEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. B ARFHBE®
(Continued)

Chengdu LS REHZ2E
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT T
Current assets MENEE 1,955 194
Non-current assets EMBNVE E 70,079 69,128
Current liabilities mEaE 35,779 23,616
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 51,988 51,388
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &I#EHB A JE(L#E (8,024) (2,898)
Equity attributable to non-controliing interests  JF2 A% # 25 FE (L #E 25 (7,709) (2,784)
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. BARFE®)

188

WEBEREEZERERA A

(Continued)
Chengdu LS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Chengdu LS had
commenced business. Chengdu LS had generated approximately
HK$4,766,000 (2020: Nil) as revenue and approximately
HK$14,592,000 (2020: HK$5,376,000) as expenses, resulting in
approximately HK$9,737,000 (2020: HK$5,376,000) loss for the
year, of which the loss attributable to owners of the Company
and loss attributable to non-controlling interest of Chengdu LS
were HK$4,966,000 (2020: HK$2,742,000) and HK$4,771,000
(2020: HK$2,634,000) respectively. Total comprehensive loss was
approximately HK$10,051,000 (2020: HK$5,682,000), of which
total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the Company
and total comprehensive loss attributable to non-controlling interest
of Chengdu LS were HK$5,126,000 (2020: HK$2,896,000) and
HK$4,925,000 (2020: HK$2,784,000) respectively.

Chengdu LS had net cash inflow from operating activities, net cash
outflow from investing activities, net cash inflow from financing
activities and net cash inflow were approximately of HK$759,000
(2020: HK$1,087,000), HK$6,553,000 (2020: HK$14,073,000),
HK$5,936,000 (2020: HK$15,284,000) and HK$142,000 (2020:
HK$124,000) respectively during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Priority distribution amount

From the date of commencement of business of the Chengdu LS
to the expiry of the Chengdu Tenancy Agreement (the “Chengdu
Priority Period”), /& JIlh 28 & & 32 B BR A A (Shenzhen Legend
Strategy Hotel Management Company Limited) (the “Shenzhen
LS”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall,
subject to the laws in the PRC, have priority over B2F% (Ms. Liao
Zihan) (the “Chengdu Partner”) in respect of distribution from the
amount (the “Chengdu Distributable Amount”) of profit after tax
(after offsetting accumulated losses and contribution to statutory
reserve) and adding back non-cash items including depreciation
and amortisation charges of Chengdu LS, which on average, is
based on around 12% of the proportionate capital commitment (in
form of share capital, if paid up, and aforesaid shareholders’ loans)
to be provided by Shenzhen LS (the “Chengdu Priority Amount”) for
each 12 month period over the Chengdu Priority Period.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

BN 2R (&)

HE—_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HLILHF
B REHh2ERRER - KE N2
RERNEEH4,766,0008 T( ==
F ) EA W E M414,592,0007% 7T
—E-FF : 5376,000/8 T ) 1E A H
¥ BHEIE 49,737,000 L (Z 2 =
ZF 1 5,376,000/870) © EFRARQ A
B AE(RE B A EB ) 2 0% FEYE AR 4 o
FEE E5 18 9 Bl 54,966,000/ T (—F —
T 1 2,742,000 7T ) & 4,771,000 7T
—TE-FHF 2,634,000/ 7T) © EHEE
BEEAA10,051,0008 T(—E ==
£ : 5,682,000%7T) + ERAREHEA A
FE(h 2 E BB AR A #D 11 2 08 FE1E A%
R EEEIBAED R A5,126,000
BIT(ZEZFF : 2,806,000 7T ) &
4,925,000/ L (ZE = Z 4 : 2,784,000
BIT) o

HE-_ZT - —F+-_A=+—HLHF
[ K& ENKEFRERESRAF
BMoRBEPHESALFHE RETD
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14,073,000/ 7C) 5,936,000/ L( ==
—EE 15,284,000 7T ) K 142,000
TL(ZZ T4 : 124,00087T) °
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. BARFE®)

(Continued)
Chengdu LS (Continued)
Priority distribution amount (Continued)

If the Chengdu Distributable Amount exceeds 24% of the total
capital commitment of Chengdu LS, parties shall share the
Chengdu Distributable Amount (other than those amounts which will
firstly be distributed to Shenzhen LS and Chengdu Partner under
the aforesaid arrangement) according to their respective interests
in Chengdu LS. The aforesaid benchmarks of 12% and 24%, and
accordingly the actual Chengdu Priority Amount for a particular 12
month period (the “Chengdu Account Period”) (starting from the
business commencement date of Chengdu Branch) may vary in
different stages of Chengdu Branch depending on its renovation
period, ramp-up period etc. The average Chengdu Priority Amount
of 12% is determined by the Company after considering the market
return rate of companies engaging in accommodation business
and expected return from its investment in the Chengdu Branch.
Both parties shall continue to be entitled to the relevant Chengdu
Distributable Amount, if not distributed, pursuant to the Chengdu
Agreement and the articles of Chengdu LS.

The determination of the Chengdu Distributable Amount will be on a
standalone basis for each Chengdu Account Period. Nevertheless,
if Chengdu LS records accumulated losses and/or is subject to
mandatory contribution to its statutory surplus, profit after tax of
Chengdu LS for the relevant Chengdu Account Period will first be
used to offset the accumulated losses and/or make contribution
to statutory surplus in order to comply with the relevant legal
requirements. The balance of such profit after tax will then be made
reference for determining the Chengdu Distributable Amount. Both
parties agreed to determine the Chengdu Priority Amounts based
on audited accounts for each Chengdu Account Period prepared
by an independent auditor to be engaged by Chengdu LS.

BER D 2R (&)
1B R RE ()

s P B 7] 93 Ik < B AR L AR B 1 2R HO AR
BAEEN24%  FINBHARBRS
EBERRE S 2 &M D B E R
RSB (RIE Ll 2 HE & 50 IR TR
WA RKEEVER O Z B TRIRIN) o
Eat12% K 24% E % - LA K M AT 1S H)
EE12MEA MM ([ REBestE]) (5K
WEEBFHIGZ BR) NBERKIBELS
B AR MERREEHRIERY
ErRIEERMEMER - KEBEESE
FHR12% - TTHARAEERKEE
BEBHRRA TS EHREIA N E K
WERENEHRCHRMETE - BIEKE
g MR ER S R AR - BTG HE AR
B REEBERRE ] 2k & %8 (AR D
)

P B A 20 Ik & B8 A AR R (K BB & 5t H
RREBEEMET - AW - WAEBAN
ZREFRFAEBRELAMEERH
TEH R BIIEHER - BN 2R R AR
e st HIR A BRI & 58 /B MR
RABER S SIEREEERG - Fit
BTHEBEERAE - BN - BERKE
T B 48 8RB B TE AR R A) 0 Ik & B Y
2E - FINETRBREBKE N 2ZHK
FTEENBLZBMARAEN SRS
ARG ESREEERBELSHE -
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. BARFE®)

190

WEBEREEZERERA A

(Continued)
Chengdu LS (Continued)
Right of purchase

The Group is given a right to purchase (the “Chengdu Right
of Purchase”) all the 49% interests in Chengdu LS held by the
Chengdu Partner if (i) Chengdu Partner and/or Chengdu LS cannot
fulfill their obligations to Shenzhen LS in respect of the distribution
of the Chengdu Priority Amount in any Chengdu Account
Period (e.g. the actual Chengdu Priority Amount is less than the
benchmark to be agreed for each Chengdu Account Period); or (i)
Chengdu LS records losses after tax for two consecutive Chengdu
Account Periods, during the first three Chengdu Account Periods
(the “Chengdu Right of Purchase Period”).

The purchase price will be based on the investment costs
committed by the Chengdu Partner in Chengdu LS (i.e. any paid-
up capital and shareholder’s loans) less proportionate losses of
Chengdu LS, if any, during the Chengdu Right of Purchase Period.

The Chengdu Right of Purchase is regarded as a derivative financial
instruments. The directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of the Chengdu Right of Purchases with reference to the valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (“Vincorn”),
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, which assess
the fair value of the Chengdu Right of Purchase using binomial
model. The amount is considered insignificant on initial recognition
and as at 31 December 2020 and therefore were not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December 2021,
the fair value of the call option for obtaining non-controlling interest
of Chengdu partner was approximately HK$997,000. Details of the
fair value measurement were disclosed in Note 6(c).

Further details were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26
March 2020.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. B ARFHBE®
(Continued)
Wuhan LS HEWE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current assets MENEE 3,335 139
Non-current assets ERBEE 91,100 87,334
Current liabilities MENAE 34,730 21,830
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 73,005 69,618
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA &% A A JE(H i (6,783) (2,027)
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests  JF2 A% # 25 e (L #E 25 (6,517) (1,948)
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. BARFE®)

192

WEBEREEZERERA A

(Continued)
Wuhan LS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Wuhan LS had
commenced business. Wuhan LS had generated approximately
HK$7,797,000 (2020: Nil) as revenue and approximately
HK$17,253,000 (2020: HK$3,763,000) as expenses, resulting in
approximately HK$9,071,000 (2020: HK$3,763,000) loss for the
year, of which the loss attributable to owners of the Company
and loss attributable to non-controlling interest of Wuhan LS
were HK$4,626,000 (2020: HK$1,919,000) and HK$4,445,000
(2020: HK$1,844,000) respectively. Total comprehensive loss was
approximately HK$9,325,000 (2020: HK$3,977,000), of which total
comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the Company and
total comprehensive loss attributable to non-controlling interest
of Wuhan LS were HK$4,756,000 (2020: HK$2,028,000) and
HK$4,569,000 (2020: HK$1,949,000) respectively.

Wuhan LS had net cash inflow from operating activities, net cash
outflow from investing activities, net cash inflow from financing
activities and net cash inflow were approximately of HK$2,984,000
(2020: HK$1,372,000), HK$9,565,000 (2020: HK$13,325,000),
HK$6,725,000 (2020: HK$14,483,000) and HK$144,000 (2020:
HK$214,000) respectively during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Priority distribution amount

From the date of commencement of business of the Wuhan LS to
the expiry of the Wuhan Tenancy Agreement (the “Wuhan Priority
Period”), Shenzhen LS shall, subject to the laws in the PRC,
have priority over & A LUl (Mr. Sun Taishan®) (“Wuhan Partner”) in
respect of distribution from the amount (the “Wuhan Distributable
Amount”) of profit after tax (after offsetting accumulated losses
and contribution to statutory reserve) and adding back non-
cash items including depreciation and amortisation charges of
Wuhan LS, which on average, is based on around 12% of the
proportionate capital commitment (in form of share capital, if paid
up, and aforesaid shareholders’ loans) to be provided by Shenzhen
Subsidiary (the “Wuhan Priority Amount”) for each 12 month period
over the Wuhan Priority Period.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 37. BARFE®)

(Continued)
Wuhan LS (Continued)
Priority distribution amount (Continued)

If the Wuhan Distributable Amount exceeds 24% of the total
capital commitment of Wuhan LS, both parties shall share the
Wuhan Distributable Amount (other than those amounts which will
firstly be distributed to Shenzhen LS and Wuhan Partner under
the aforesaid arrangement) according to their respective interests
in Wuhan LS. The aforesaid benchmarks of 12% and 24%, and
accordingly the actual Wuhan Priority Amount for a particular 12
month period (the “Wuhan Account Period”) (starting from the
business commencement date of Wuhan Branch) may vary in
different stages of Wuhan LS depending on its renovation period,
ramp-up period etc. The average Wuhan Priority Amount of 12%
is determined by the Company after considering the market return
rate of companies engaging in accommodation business and
expected return from its investment in the Wuhan LS. Both parties
shall continue to be entitled to the relevant Wuhan Distributable
Amount, if not distributed, pursuant to the Wuhan Agreement and
the articles of Wuhan LS.

The determination of the Wuhan Distributable Amount will be on a
standalone basis for each Wuhan Account Period. Nevertheless,
if Wuhan LS records accumulated losses and/or is subject to
mandatory contribution to its statutory surplus, profit after tax
of Wuhan LS for the relevant Wuhan Account Period will first be
used to offset the accumulated losses and/or make contribution
to statutory surplus in order to comply with the relevant legal
requirements. The balance of such profit after tax will then be made
reference for determining the Wuhan Distributable Amount. Both
parties agreed to determine the Wuhan Priority Amounts based on
audited accounts for each Wuhan Account Period prepared by an
independent auditor to be engaged by Wuhan LS.
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The Group is given a right to purchase (the “Wuhan Right of
Purchase”) all the 49% interests in Wuhan LS held by the Wuhan
Partner if () Wuhan Partner and/or Wuhan LS cannot fulfill their
obligations to Shenzhen LS in respect of the distribution of the
Wuhan Priority Amount in any Wuhan Account Period (e.g. the
actual Wuhan Priority Amount is less than the benchmark to be
agreed for each Wuhan Account Period); or (i) Wuhan LS records
losses after tax for two consecutive Wuhan Account Periods,
during the first three Wuhan Account Periods (the “Wuhan Right of
Purchase Period”).

The purchase price will be based on the investment costs
committed by the Wuhan Partner in Wuhan LS (i.e. any paid-up
capital and shareholder’s loans) less proportionate losses of Wuhan
LS, if any, during the Wuhan Right of Purchase Period.

The Wuhan Right of Purchase is regarded as a derivative financial
instruments. The directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of the Wuhan Right of Purchases with reference to the valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (“Vincorn”),
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, which assess
the fair value of the Wuhan Right of Purchase using binomial model.
The amount is considered insignificant on initial recognition and as
at 31 December 2020 and therefore were not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the call option
for obtaining non-controlling interest of Wuhan partner was
approximately HK$1,752,000. Details of the fair value measurement
were disclosed in Note 6(c).

Further details were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26
March 2020.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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38.

39.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 December 2021, the Group and Shenzhen Zhaohua
entered into a letter of intent pursuant to which the Group may
lease premises under development in Shenzhen, the PRC, from
Shenzhen Zhaohua for its accommodation operation. Up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group is still in the course of negotiation with Shenzhen Zhaohua
on the terms of the possible lease and no definitive agreement
was entered by both parties. Further details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 December 2021.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 7 March 2022.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFUBHRE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the ~ AEEBEREAMBRFENEEUALEERE
last five financial years is as follows: BOMEWT :

Results &

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—HLEFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —T-FTF —FT-NF T)\F —T—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT FH&T FAT

(Restated)
(&e&75)
Revenue WS 70,564 50,678 45,585 45,547 16,282
(Loss) profit before tax BRA AT (E5E ) m A (150) 144 (8,120) (2,077) (42,570)
Income tax (expense) credit ~ FT{SH (FIs2 )% (3,866) (2,605) (7,002) (3,110) 409
Loss for the year FREE (4,016) (2,461) (15,122) (5,187) (42,161)
Attributable to: BT AL RS
Owners of the Company RAREB A 4,977 2,063 (14,970) (4,378) (42,089)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (8,993) (4,524) (152) (809) (72)
(4,016) (2,461) (15,122) (5,187) (42,161)
Assets, liabilities and Non-controlling interests EE BENIEERES
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—f —T-_TF —T-HEFE —T-NF —ZT+HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHT FAT FAT T
(Restated)
(ge&:5)
Total assets BEEE 240,184 231,528 71,236 99,169 66,307
Total liabilities BERRE (242,156)  (229,474) (67,609) (79,810) (45,237)
Non-controlling interests FEFE A T 14,295 5,019 223 76 (743)
Equity attributable to owners ANA Bl1EA A&
of the Company HEm 12,323 7,073 3,850 19,435 20,327

- 196 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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